AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLAN COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK
TO BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, February 5, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M. AT THE
WILLOWBROOK POLICE DEPARTMENT, TRAINING ROOM, 7760 QUINCY STREET,
WILLOWBROOK, ILLINOIS.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
OMNIBUS VOTE AGENDA

A. Waive Reading of Minutes (APPROVE)
B. Minutes - November 5, 2019

PLAN COMMISSION CONSIDERATION: Zoning Hearing Case 20-01:
Consideration of a petition requesting approval of an
amendment to a special use permit within the B-2 Community
Shopping District zoning classification, including certain
variations from Title 9 of the Village Code, to modernize
and enlarge the existing car wash with associated site
improvements, located at the northwest corner of the
intersection of Illinois Route 83 and Plainfield Road.

A. PUBLIC HEARING
B. DISCUSSION/RECOMMENDATION

PLAN COMMISSION CONSIDERATION: Conceptual review and
feedback on Planned Unit Development approval for a
proposed 14,330 SF Hotel, 6,800 SF Financial Institution
and 2,400 SF Restaurant with Drive-through. Location: 735
Plainfield Road in Willowbrook, IL 60527

A, DISCUSSION/RECOMMENDATIONS

VISITOR’S BUSINESS

COMMUNICATIONS

ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE PLAN COMMISSION HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2019 AT THE WILLOWBROOK POLICE DEPARTMENT,
TRAINING ROOM, 7760 QUINCY STREET, WILLOWBROOK, ILLINOIS

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Kopp called the meeting to order at the hour of 7:00p.m.

2 ROLL CALL

Those present at roll call were Commissioners Remkus, Soukup, Ruffalo, Kaucky, and Walec,
Vice Chairman Wagner, and Chairman Kopp.

Also present were Planning Consultant Anne Choi, Building Official Roy Giuntoli, Recording
Secretary Lisa Shemroske.

3. OMNIBUS VOTE AGENDA
The items on the Omnibus Vote Agenda were as follows:

A. Waive Reading of Minutes (APPROVE)
B. Minutes — Regular Meeting September 4,2019 (with typo changes)

MOTION: Made by Commissioner Remkus, seconded by Commissioner Walec, to
approve the Omnibus Vote Agenda as presented.

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED

4, PLAN COMMISSION CONSIDERATION: Zoning Hearing Case 19-09: Petition for
text amendments to amend Sections 9-6B-1 (or 9-6B-2) ,9-6C-1 (or 9-6C-2) and 9-6D-1
(or 9-6D-2) of Title 9 - Zoning Title of the Village of Willowbrook Municipal Code to
add “Video Gaming Café” as a new permitted use or special use in the B-2, B-3 and B-4
Zoning Districts; to amend Section 9-2-2 of Title 9- Zoning Title of the Village of the
Willowbrook Municipal Code to add “Video Gaming Café” as a new definition and
amend the current definition of “Restaurant™; and to add new use categories “similar and
compatible uses” in Sections 9-6A-1, 9-6A-2, 9-6B-1. 9-6B-2. 9-6C-1, 9-6C-2. 9-6D-1
and 9-6D-2 of Title 9- Zoning Title of the Village of the Willowbrook Municipal Code.

A. PUBLIC HEARING
Closed at 7:13pm
B. DISCUSSION/RECOMMENDATION

See Court Reporter Minutes for Discussion and Recommendation



Plan Commission — Regular Meeting
November 6, 2019
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MOTION: The following motion made by Commissioner Walec was seconded by
Commissioner Remkus and all in favor

Based on the submitted petition and testimony presented, I move that the Plan Commission
recommend approval of the text amendments presented on Page six and seven of the staff report
for Case No. 19-09, to define and allow “video gaming café” as a permitted use in the B-2, B-3
and B-4 Zoning Districts, with the exception that the half mile limitation be deleted, and to amend

the current definition of “restaurant” to add, “new use categories similar and compatible uses, “to
the list of permitted and special uses in the business zoning districts.

Roll Call Vote: AYES: Commissioners Remkus, Soukup, Ruffalo, Kaucky, Walec, Vice
Chairman Wanger, and Chairman Kopp NAYS: None
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED

5. VISITOR’S BUSINESS: None
6. COMMUNICATIONS
Planner Choi informed the Committee that there may be a December 4% Public Hearing meeting
and if they will be available. It would be to consider cannabis use in Commercial District.
Building Official Giuntoli gave updates on Rt 83 plan to be done by the end of November.
Hopefully repaving of east of Rt 83 on Plainfield Road by the end of this year.
7.  ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Made by Commissioner Walec, seconded by Commissioner Ruffalo, to adjourn the
meeting of the Plan Commission at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE MOTION DECLARED CARRIED

PRESENTED, READ AND APPROVED,

February 5.2020

Chairman

Minutes transcribed by Building and Zoning Secretary Lisa ] Shemroske
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CITY OF WILLOWBROOK
PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

OF THE CITY OF WILLOWBROOK

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 06, 2019

7:00 p.m.

RECORD OF THE PRCCEEDINGS had at the meeting held

Before the Planning & Zoning Commission of Woodridge, on
Wednesday, the 6th day of November 2019, commencing at
7:00 p.m., as reported by Robin Hejnar, a Certified
Shorthand Reporter and Registered Professional Reporter
and Notary Public in and for the County of DuPage and

State of Illinois.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

APPEARANCES:

Daniel Kopp - Chairman

John Wagner - Vice-Chairman
Lisa Shemroske - Secretary
Gregory Ruffolo - Member
Leonard Kaucky - Member
James Soukup - Member
Macie] Walec - Member

William Remkus - Member

STAFF ALSO PRESENT:
Roy Giuntoli - Building Inspector

Ann Choi - Planning Consultant

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON,
(630) 690-0050

ILLINOIS




CHAIRMAN KOPP: Let's start the meeting of
the Planned Commission of the Village Willowbrook. I
ask Secretary Shemroske to call the roll.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Remkus?

MR. REMKUS: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Soukup?

MR. SOUKUP: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Ruffolo?

MR. RUFFQOLO: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaucky?

MR. KAUCKY: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Walec?

MR. WALEC: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Vice Chairman Wagner?

VICE CHATRMAN WAGNER: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Chairman Kopp?

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Planner, Ann Choi?

MS. CHOI: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Giuntoli?

MR. GIUNTOLI: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: And I'm Lisa Shemroske.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Next item on the agenda is

the omnibus vote agenda; and I looked at the minutes
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from last meeting, and there was actually a typo in
section four about the vote, so I pointed that out to
Lisa, and she's going to correct it.

It inadvertently just repeated some names as
voting both aye and nay, but if we delete Walec and the
words Walec and vice chairman from the nays, I think
that represents the actual vote in that matter.

So with that change, will someone make a
motion to waive the reading of the minutes and to
approve the minutes?

MR. REMKUS: So moved.

MR. WALEC: So moved.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All in favor say, Aye.

ALL MEMBERS: Aye.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Next item on the agenda is
zoning hearing Case No. 1909. The purpose of this
public hearing should be to consider a petition for text
amendments to amend Sections 9-6B-1, or 9-6B-2, 9-6C-1,
OR 9-6C-2, and 9-6D-1, OR 9-6D-2 of Title 9, Zoning
Title of the Village of Willowbrook Municipal Code to
add "Video Gaming Cafe™ as a new permitted use or
special use in the B-2, B-3, and B-4 Zoning Districts;
to amend Section 9-2-2 of Title 9, Zoning Title of the

Village of Willowbrook Municipal Code to add "Video
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Gaming Cafe" as a new definition and amend the current
definition of "Restaurant”; and to add new use
categories "similar and compatible uses in Sections
9-6Al, 9-6A-2, 9-6B-1, 9-6B-2, 9-6C-1, 9-6C-2, 9-6D-1,
9-6D-2 of Title 9, Zoning Title of the Village of
Willowbrook Municipal Code.

Notice -- the applicant for this hearing is
the Village of Willowbrook. Notice of this public
hearing was published in the October 21, 2019, edition
of the Chicago Sun Times newspaper.

Ann, would you like to speak for the
Village?

MS. CHOI: Yes. Thank you, Chairman Kopp.

So tonight's presentations proposes a séries
of text amendments. The primary focus is to introduce a
new video gaming cafe use in the B-2, B-3, and B-4
zoning districts. I provided the zoning maps where you
can see what zones are applicable.

This is to propose video gaming as a
principal use with the service of alcoheol and food as
incidental to the operation of video gaming. The other
proposed text amendments would define the video gaming
cafe use, revise the current definition of restaurant to

differentiate it completely from the video gaming cafe,
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and to introduce a new use category, "similar and
compatible uses™ under the list of permitted and special
uses in the business zoning districts.

This Village initiated text amendment was
brought about because of an increase in public inquiries
by several local business owners who have expressed an
interest in opening an establishment whose principal use
is video gaming.

Video gaming is currently allowed in the
Village at establishments that have valid liquor
licenses, but these establishments' priory use is a
restaurant or bar, not video gaming.

So the proposed text amendment would allow
video gaming to the principal use, and not tied
exclusively to a bar or restaurant with the service of
food and alcohol.

So the Village currently does not
distinguish between video gaming cafes and restaurants
that have video gaming as an ancillary use to their main
business. Staff found that video gaming establishments,
which serviced liquor and packaged foods, such as chips,
can technically still fall under the restaurant use
category.

Therefore, staff felt that video gaming cafe

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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use should be differentiated for the restaurant use, and
that the definition of "restaurant"™ should be revised to
be more specific.

The current definition of "restaurant" can
be found on page five of the staff report, and the
proposed new definition can be found on page six.

Staff believes the reguirement of the
special use within the business zoning districts would
be too onercus of a process for potential applicants
wishing to open a video gaming cafe within the Village,
and here's why.

The Planned Commission would be limited in
the types of conditions it could impose on a video
gaming cafe, as the Planned Commission does not have the
authority to limit the hours of operation, the number of
video gaming terminals, the number of licenses, or set
license fees.

These are under the purview of the Village
Board and the Liquor Commissioner. Additionally, if the
plan Commission recommends approval of the proposed text
amendments, the Village will be considering amendments
to the Willowbrook Video Gaming Code, and Liquor Code at
the November 11, 2019, Village Board meeting.

These new amendments would regulate these

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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establishments by introducing additional liquor license
applications. One will be tied to restaurants with
gaming, and one will be tied for videc gaming cafes,
limiting the number of these licenses, and proposing a
minimum distance of a half mile between video gaming
cafes. Given these reasons, and the fact that the State
already heavily regulates these types of businesses,
staff does not recommend that the video gaming cafe
should be designed as a special use.

So, aside from the video gaming cafe use,
the secondary part of the text amendment, staff would
recommend approval of the new use categories "similar
and compatible uses"™ to capture uses that are not
explicitly enumerated in the list of special uses in the
zone code. This will reduce the number of text
amendments and staff time devoted to the text amendment
process.

The determination of what constitutes
"similar and compatible" shall be made by the Village
Administrator, or his or her authorized designee; and
any ambiguous use that is not contemplated by the zoning
code will be further discussed between Village
departments before determining if said use would require

the initiation of a text amendment.
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So if the Planned Commission is supportive
of this petition, a sample motion can be found on page
eight of the staff report; and that concludes my
presentation. I am available for any questions.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: So the half mile
limitation ~-- and the idea is that we don't want to have
50 of these all of a sudden showing up?

MS. CHOI: Yes. The Village doesn't want
the proliferation of these types of establishments.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: But there's no such
prohibition on restaurants and bars?

MS. CHOI: ©No, there is not. So the wvideo
gaming cafe use would be separated from the restaurant
uses that have slot machines in them. So the half mile
separation distance would only apply tc the video gaming
cafes.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Right.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: What is an example of
the real world use? Is this like a Betty's?

MS. CHOI: Yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: ~- gambling wvideo
establishment?

MS. CHOI: Yes. I think they offer

refreshments, but it's not full-service food. It's not

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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prepared food. It's not cooked in a kitchen.

CHATIRMAN KOPP: We had approved one a few
years ago. I didn't realize it until I read the report
that the trustees voted --

MS. CHOI: I think this went in 2016, and it
was unanimous approval by the Planned Commissioners who
were present, and I think, unfortunately, the residents
didn't want to see that use, perhaps, and the Village
Board denied it.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: So, currently, we can't --
our code doesn't allow that kind of establishment?

MS. CHOI: They don't allow the video gaming
cafes as a standalone use.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: It would have to be in a
restaurant?

MS. CHOI: Right.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Got it.

I have no other questions. Anybody else
have any questions?

Anyone in the audience have any guestions on
this matter, or testimony?

All right. If you had a summation or a
conclusion...

MS. CHOI: I would just say that staff was

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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supportive of these text amendments.

I don't know if you had any further
gquestions on the items that didn't have anything to do
with the video gaming cafe use, such as adding new use
categories to the B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4 zoning districts.

CHATRMAN KOPP: Sort of a catchall?

MS. CHOI: Yes.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: The effect, it seems to
me —-—- the catchall is the Village Administrator's going
to have more work and we'll have less work?

MS. CHOI: Yes, that is true.

We've just had a number of inquiries, I
think, where a use would technically not fit under
anything that we have, but it would -- l1like a retail
use, but all of our retail uses are strangely
categorized, 1like a hat shop or a variety store, but it
doesn't say "retail" explicitly. So if it is a use that
is similar to that, it's just not enumerated in our
Code. It would just fall under this new category.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Can you give me an example
of one that's happening?

MS. CHOI: One that just happened was --
someone was interested in bringing in a kids spa. It's

actually like a venue where people —- it's very popular
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with young children, where you would throw birthday
parties. You would have, I don't know, costumes, you
would have catered food come in. Little girls could get
their nails done; and this is just not enumerated in our
Code, but I think it would fit nicely into, say, like a
shopping plaza. Quite popular. I have kids myself,
little children, and it's all the rage.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Anybody else?

MR. REMKUS: It might be a good way to get
some tax revenue going.

MS. CHOI: I did take a look, actually, at
the revenue -generated, I think in Westmont and Darien.
These were nearby communities that were cited, I think,
back in 2016, when you were considering this item.

I believe there are four establishments.
Mainly the restaurants and bars, generate about 40,000
per year. The municipality receives that.

For Darien and Westmont, they were in the --
Darien has $162,000, and Westmont has $287,000 that they
generate. It was January through October of this year.

Now, it's not to say that Willowbrook has
the same number of slot machines, but those communities
have standalone video gaming uses, whereas we don't.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Is that number for

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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video cafes, or does that number include restaurants
with the —-

MS. CHOI: I think it's based on the slot
machines, what they're generating.

MR. SOUKUP: Is there a limited number of
machines they can carry in a place?

MR. WALEC: Five.

MS. CHOI: Well, the state law updated it to
six now.

MR. WALEC: They did?

MR. SQUKUP: What?

MS. CHOI: Six video gaming terminals.

MR. SOQUKUP: I was wondering how you can
make money on six slot machines, but evidently you can
make a lot.

MR. REMKUS: If I want to gamble, I go to
Vegas. I want to go somewhere. I don't want to be
home.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All right. Well, I will
close the public hearing for Zoning Hearing Case No.
1909.

I'm in favor of this. I'm not sure about
the half mile limitation. I don't want to protect one

business, especially one getting in there first. I

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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don't feel particularly strongly about that though. I
don't know if anyone does one way or the other.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Well, I was just
looking at the zoning map based on the districts, and
would probably only be able tc have a maximum of maybe
three in the community. If there was one up near 63rd
Street, then it would preclude -- until you got down
near Plainfield Road; and then if there was one near
Plainfield Road and 83, then there would be some very
limited areas down near I-55.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: 1I've never been in one of
these places, but when they gave their presentation last
time, I don't think they're bringing people into the
community that we're worried about. I think it's
elderly people. I don't think it's like a casino.

VICE CHATRMAN WAGNER: I would agree.

The only thing I would say is there seems to
be pretty good proliferation of these around the area.
I'm not sure the half mile -- where that aspect of it
comes in, other than a recommendation, but I'm not sure
I'm in favor of the half mile restriction.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I am not either. I would
think that it should be a permitted use, not a special

use, because if it's a special use, then every time

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

15

someone wants to open one of those, they have to come in
front of us, and that doesn't seem appropriate.

Will someone make a motion, that based on
the submitted petition and testimony presented, I move
that the Planned Commission recommend to the Village
Board approval of the text amendments presented on pages
six and seven of the staff report for Case No. 1809, to
define and allow "video gaming cafe” as a permitted use
in the B-2, B-3 and B4 Zoning Districts, with the
exception that the half mile limitation be deleted, and
to amend the current definition of "restaurant" to
add, "new use categories similar and compatible uses,"
to the list of permitted and special uses in the
business zoning districts.

Someone make that motion.

MR. WALEC: I'll make that motion.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I ask the Plan Commission
Secretary to call a vote.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Remkus?

MR. REMEKUS: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Soukup?

MR. SOQUKUP: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Ruffolo?

MR. RUFFOLO: Yes.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaucky?

MR. KAUCKY: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Walec?

MR. WALEC: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Vice Chairman Wagner?

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Chairman Kopp?

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Yes.

That's the public hearing.

Any visitors business? BAnyone in the
audience have anything?

Any communications; Ann?

MS. CHOI: So I'm supposed to take an
informal vote of the commissioners who might be
avallable for a December 4th public hearing. This
probably won't happen, but it would be to consider
having the cannabis -- the recreational cannabis use in
the commercial districts.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I can't even remember what
we did last time.

Ms5. CHOI: It was to consider that in the
industrial districts.

CHATIRMAN KOPP: ©Oh, got it.

MS. CHOI: So I was wondering if all of you

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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would be available on December 4th for a public hearing.

MR. REMKUS: I'm not sure on that one yet.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Anything else? Anybody have
any questions?

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Route 83 going to get
done tomorrow?

MR. GIUNTQOLI: It won't be tomorrow, but he
was given an ultimatum by IDOT. So that's why it ramped
up quite a bit in the last few days.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Are they pouring
islands to divide the sides? Is that what they're
doing?

MR. GIUNTOLI: There's going to be a center
median in a couple of locations. Right now I'm a little
fuzzy on where, but for sure on Plainfield, on the west
side of 83.

VICE CHATIRMAN WAGNER: If there's a cutout
on the east side too, is that all going to get done
before most of the snow flies?

MR. GIUNTOLI: Well, I believe the ultimatum
was the end of November. That was given to the
developer with serious penalties if it wasn't done by
then. So, again, that's why it's ramped up quite a bit;

and there's actually a lot of bodies out there doing
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things.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Okay.

MR. RUFFOLO: Do you know if the pavement
east of Route 83 on Plainfield is going to be repaved?

MR. GIUNTOLI: It would have been repaved
had that development been further along with their work,
but K-Five decided -- stopped where they did on both
sides on purpose to wait till this be finished, and then
they're going to repave everything.

Whether that's going to be done this year or
not is unknown. We've inquired a couple of times, and
it's all dependent whether or not the asphalt plants are
still open.

MR. RUFFOLO: It's in very bad shape.

MR. GIUNTOLI: It is. You go from nice and
clean and smooth to rattling your teeth.

So I get that, but there's no guarantee, but
they're going to try.

CHATRMAN KOPP: 1I'll make a motion to
adjourn.

MR. WALEC: So moved.

MR. RUFFOLO: Second.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All in favor say, Aye.

ALL MEMBERS: Aye.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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(WHICH WERE ALIL THE PROCEEDINGS HAD.)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) S8S:
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

I, ROBIN HEJNAR, a certified shorthand reporter
and registered professional reporter within and for the
County of DuPage and State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that the meeting in the above-entitled matter
was recorded stenographically by me, was reduced to
typewriting under my personal direction.

I further certify that the said meeting was
taken at the time and place specified.

I further certify that I am not a relative or
employee or attorney or counsel of any of the parties,
relative or employee of such attorney or counsel or
financially interested directly or indirectly in this
action.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set ny hand

EH ad [} a i:,;

and affixed my seal of office at Chicage, Illing

day of November, A.D., 2019.

ROBIN HEJNAR
CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTER,
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL REPORTER,

License No. 084-004689
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Plan Commission Date:
Prepared By:
Case Title:

Petitioner:

Action Requested:

Purpose:

Location:

PINs:
Existing Zoning:
Proposed Zoning:

Existing Land Use(s):

Property Size:

Surrounding Land Use:
North
South
Northeast

Southwest
Southeast

February 5, 2020
Ann Choi, Planning Consultant
Ducky’s Car Wash Addition

David Schaefer (and Magpoon Management Inc. as property owner)
2500 S. Highland Avenue, Lombard, IL 60148

Consideration of a petition requesting approval of an amendment to a
special use permit within the B-2 Community Shopping District zoning
classification, including certain variations from Title 9 of the Village Code, to
modernize and enlarge the existing car wash with associated site
improvements.

To replace the existing car wash with the construction of a one-story, 1,351
square-foot automated car wash tunnel, including six (6) new vacuum
stations and a new attendant kiosk.

7000 S. Kingery Highway. Northwest corner of Illinois Route 83 and
Plainfield Road.

09-23-310-024 and 09-23-310-025
B-2 Community Shopping District
B-2 Community Shopping District (No change to zoning)

Automobile Service Station {Gas Station), Convenience Food Store and
Automobile Washing and Cleaning Facility

1.147 Acres

Use Zoning
General Business (Willowbrook Plaza Shopping Center) B-3
Wendy's fast food restaurant, City of Darien B-1
Community Shopping (The Willows — Pete’s Fresh Market) B-2

BP Gas Station

Regional Stormwater Basin, City of Darien R-2
Community Shopping (Willowbrook Town Center) B-2

Mecessary Action by
Plan Commission

Open Public Hearing, accept testimony, and approve a recommendation to
the Village Board
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Documents Attached:

Attachment 1:
Attachment 2:
Attachment 3:
Attachment 4:
Attachment 5:
Attachment 6;
Attachment 7:
Attachment 8:

Attachment 9:

Attachment 10:

Attachment 11:

Attachment 12:
Attachment 13:

Attachment 14:

Attachment 15:
Attachment 16:

Notice of Public Hearing (2 pages)

Findings of Fact, Standards for Special Use

Findings of Fact, Standards for Variations

Legal Description

Plat of Survey, prepared by Professional Land Surveying, Inc., and bearing a revision date of
12/18/2019 (1 Sheet)

Site Plan, Sheet A1, prepared by David A. Schaefer Architects PC, and bearing a revision date
of 1/16/2020 (1 Sheet)

Architectural Drawings, Sheet Nos. A2-A5, prepared by David A. Schaefer Architects PC, and
bearing a revision date of 10/4/2019 {4 Sheets)

Landscape Plan, prepared by Kestrel Design, and bearing a revision date of November 12,
2019 (1 Sheet)

Engineer's Estimate of Improvement Costs, prepared by Bono Consulting inc., and dated
10/29/2019 (1 Sheet)

Engineering Plans, Sheet Nas. C0-C3, prepared by Bono Consulting Inc., and dated
10/29/2019 (4 Sheets)

Engineering Review Letter, prepared by Christopher B. Burke Engineering Ltd., and dated
January 17, 2020 {2 pages)

Construction Schedule, dated 10/21/19 (4 pages)

Traffic Review Letter, prepared by Gewalt Hamilton Associates, Inc., dated January 16, 2020
{2 pages)

Traffic Control Plan, Sheet No. T1, prepared by David A. Schaefer Architects PC, and bearing
a revision date of 10/4/2019 (1 Sheet)

Photometric Plan, prepared by Red Leonard Associates, and dated 10/28/19 {1 Sheet).
Planning Review Letter, issued by the Village of Willowbrook, and dated 01/22/20 (6 pages)

It should be noted that all plan documents are still under review and require modifications, and that final
documents forwarded to the Board will need to all be newly revision dated and identified “For Viilage Board
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Background

Description of Site

The subject property is located at the northwest corner of Hllinois Route 83 and Plainfield Road. The subject
property has a total land area of approximately 49,988 square feet, or approximately 1.147 acres. The subject
property is currently located in the B-2 Community Shopping Zoning District and consists of Lots 11, 12, 13 and
14 in the Tri-State Village Unit Number 5 Subdivision. The subject property is highly irregular in shape and is
subject to multiple 100-foot special setback requirements from lllinois Route 83 to the east and Plainfield Road
to the south. The subject site is currently occupied with a gas'station with twelve (12) passenger vehicle fueling
positions, a convenience store, and a single bay car wash. A wetland detention pond and woodland area are
located off-site to the west of the subject property. The project area is located within the-Sawmill Creek sub-
watershed and Des Plaines River watershed.
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Exhibit 2 Google 3D View of the Subject Property (Looking Northwest)
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Staff Report to the Plan Commission
Ducky's Car Wash Addition

Surrounding Zones and Uses
Surrounding zoning and uses include a shopping center (Willowbrook Plaza Shopping Center) including a
martial arts school, a cabinetry store, a Domino’s Pizza restaurant, a mattress store, and associated parking lot
in the B-3 zoning district to the north, the Willows shopping center including Pete’s Fresh Market and
asscciated parking lot in the B-2 zoning district to the northeast, the Willowbrook Town Center in the B-2 zoning
district to the southeast, lots zoned for neighborhood convenience shopping uses to the south (City of Darien),
and lots zoned in the R-2 zoning district to the west (City of Darien). The lot immediately to the west of the
subject property is zoned R-2 but there is no residential structure on this fot and has been used as a regional
storm water basin. The Village of Willowbrook’s Comprehensive Plan designates the site for “Community
Commercial” uses, which corresponds to the B-2 Community Shopping Zoning District.

Exhibit 3 Zoning Map (B-2 Commgglity Shopping)
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Existing Streets and Circulation

lliinois Route 83/Kingery Highway is designated as a Regional Arterial and forms the eastern boundary of the
site with a required right-of-way width of 200 feet. A right-in/right-out access drive on IL Rt. 83 is located
approximately 170 feet north of Plainfield Road. The access drive provides one inbound lane and one outbound
lane restricted to right-turn movements by the median on IL Rt. 83.

Plainfield Road is designated as a Major Arterial and forms the southern boundary of the subject property
with a required right-of-way width of 100 feet. A full movement access drive on Plainfield Road is located
approximately 170 feet west of IL Rt. 83. The access drive provides one inbound lane and one outbound lane
divided by a landscape median. It should be noted that as part of ongoing construction at the intersection
of IL Rt. 83 with Plainfield Road, the inbound lane of this intersection is blocked, and the westbound lane is
operating as an inbound and outbound lane.

lllinois Route 83 with Plainfield Road Intersection Improvements _
The intersection of IL Rt. 83 with Plainfield Road is currently under construction and will be improved as follows:
e Plainfield Road will provide dual left-turn lanes on both approaches.
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Plainfield Road will provide a right-turn lane on the westbound approach.
The northbound right-turn lane on IL Rt. 83 will be extended through the intersection to serve the
retail development in the northwest quadrant.

History

Prior Zoning Request
The previous ordinances regulating this facility are as follows:

Ordinance No. 77-0-14 — Original special use ordinance establishing the use, but without specific bulk
standards.

Ordinance No. 78-0-43 — Amended original special use to provide for signage and construction of a
canopy within required IL Rt. 83 front yard, without specific standards.

Ordinance No. 80-0-40 — Amended most recent ordinance to permit a canopy encroachment along
the IL Rt. 83 front yard to 6'-6" and permit a canopy height of 16°-10".

Ordinance No. 84-0-12 — Amended previous ordinance to revise the bulk standard setback for a
canopy to 51 feet along both IL Rt. 83 and Plainfield Road, revise transition yard setback to 30 feet and
the accessory use setback to 15 feet for the construction of a car wash facility, and the upgrading of
site signage to conform to Village standards.

Ordinance No. 94-0-29 — Further amended previous ordinance to revise the specific setbacks and bulk
standards for a canopy to 20’ and gasoline pump dispenser islands to 25'-6" along IL Rt. 83; revise the
bulk standards for a canopy to 26’-10” and gasoline pump dispenser islands to 36’-4” along Plainfield
Road; reduce the minimum lot area from three (3) acres to one and 147/1000th hundred (1.147) acres;
reduce the rear yard setback to 29-7” for the existing car wash, 25’ feet for the existing attendant
kiosk, and 30’-4” for the food mart; revise the transition yard setback to 70’ for the refuse storage
area, reduce the required screening to a 4’ berm with the existing single row of evergreens, 6’ in height
spaced 5 on center, and the remainder of the transition yard screened with a double row of
evergreens, 3’ in height spaced 3’ on center; reduce the parking area setbacks to 1’ for the impervious
surface setback; reduce the minimum number of stacking spaces for automobile laundries to 10
stacking spaces; reduce the required minimum access driveway curb radius for two-way driveways
intersecting with IL Rt. 83 from 30’ to 15°; reduce the minimum separation requirement between an
access driveway entrance and an adjoining ot line from 70’ to 68’; reduce the minimum access
driveway spacing for separate driveways on a lot from 85’ to 75; reduce the minimum access driveway
separation from the adjoining street on a corner lot from 85° to zero feet for the access driveway along
Plainfield Road, and to 12’ for the access driveway along IL Rt. 83; reduce the minimum building height
for a sign which projects from the face of the wall upon which it is mounted from 7'-6" to 2’-6”; and
reduce the minimum separation for detached accessory buildings from the principal building from 10
to 3’

Overview

Development Proposal

The existing car wash has been operating since the mid-1980s. The property owner, Magpoon Management
Inc. acquired the property in 2019 and wishes to modernize the existing car wash which is over 30 years old.
The property owner requests an amendment to the special use to replace the existing car wash with an
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automated car wash tunnel that will accommodate a maximum capacity of six cars (the greatest possible
number of automobiles undergoing some phase of laundering at the same time). The proposed car wash
expansion will replace the existing seven parking spaces with two {2) parking spaces and six (6) vacuum
stations.

The property owner anticipates a top of the line car wash facility at this location in terms of building appearance
and functionality. The property owner proposes using state of the art equipment which appear to lack in many
existing local Willowbrook facilities. The car wash is proposed to operate from 8:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. Monday
through Sunday. According to the Traffic Impact Evaluation, the proposed car wash expansion is expected to
process thirty-nine {39) vehicles during the weekday evening peak hour between 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M.

Car Wash Circulation

The single-lane automatic car wash tunnel will be an exterior-only car wash system and will have a clockwise
rotation around the site. The entrance to the car wash drive-through system is located at the southwest end
of the site. Vehicles will proceed along the west edge of the site and will approach the payment kiosk at the
entrance to the car wash to select and pay for their car wash options. Vehicles will then proceed forward to
the entrance of the tunnel. At the entrance to the car wash tunnel, the driver will remain in the vehicle and the
car wash will automatically pull the vehicle through the tunnel. After exiting the tunnel, the vehicles will turn
east and then either proceed straight to the IL Rt. 83 right-in/right-out access drive or turn right to access the
vacuum positions or continue to the Plainfield Road access drives. Approximately five vehicles can be
accommodated between the car wash exit and the iL Rt. 83 access drive.

Car Wash Stacking

The site plan indicates there is area for approximately five vehicles to queue between the payment kiosk and
the Plainfield Road access drive. In addition, there appears to be additional stacking for vehicles on site. As
such, the car wash is projected to process thirty-nine {(39) vehicles during the weekday evening peak hour (the
peak hour with the highest traffic volumes) of adjacent rcadway traffic. A majority of inbound traffic, based on
the counts, will access the site from the IL Rt. 83 access drive.

Vacuum Positions and Parking

The existing gas station provides seven (7} standard parking spots for employees and patrons. With the
expansion of the car wash, the number of parking spaces will be reduced to two (2) spaces, including one (1)
accessible parking space. The site will provide six (6) vacuum parking positions located on the east side of the
car wash tunnel.

Requested Action:

Approval of an amendment to a special use permit within the B-2 Community Shopping District zoning
classification, including certain variations from Title 9 of the Village Code, to modernize and enlarge the existing
car wash with associated site improvements.

Staff Analysis

Appropriateness of Use

The appropriateness of use is something that is considered with each special use. It evaluates the impacts of
the use as it pertains to site improvemenits, but also whether there should be any operational considerations.
The current uses on the subject property are a gas station, convenience food mart and a car wash, and the
proposed uses are not changing. The special use amendment requested is only to expand the existing car wash.
As the gas station, food mart and car wash have existed on the subject property for decades, the site appears
to be appropriate for the expanded use.
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Building Elevations
The petitioner has submitted building elevations, including the east elevation as shown in Exhibit 4 below.
Refer to Attachment 7 for the remaining elevations. The proposed car wash expansion provides variations in
the choice of building materials, and introduces a sufficient number of breaks in the fagade with material
changes and variations of the roof line with the use of tower elements and pyramid hip roofs. Proposed building
materials include a combination of brick veneer panels, stone veneer knee walls with limestone sills, and
prefabricated cornices. Glass block windows punctuate the west elevation to allow natural light to filter into
the proposed facility. Furthermore, the proposed building elevations will canfarm to the General Conditions of
the Business Districts under Section 9-6-1{E) Building Facade Materials. Since the submitted building elevations
were only drawn in black and white, 5taff requests that the building elevations be revised to indicate
complementary, neutral colors. Staff recommends that this be included as a condition for the Plan
Commission’s future recommendation to the Vifllage Board.

Exhibit 4 East Elevation

The proposed car wash expansion will be one-story (with two architecturat tower features) and wili add
approximately 1,351 gross square feet, resulting in a total gross floor area of 3,932 gross square feet for the
car wash and food mart combined. A color-coded breakdown of the proposed building’s first floor pian is shown
below in Exhibit 5. Refer to Attachment 7 for more detail.

Exhibit 5 Floor Plan
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Zoning Bulk Requirements

The property is zoned B-2 (with a Special Use}. The petitioner is requesting the approval of an amendment to
the existing special use for several bulk exceptions and variations. A detailed discussion of specific setbacks
and important bulk exceptions and variations for the car wash addition is provided in Exhibit 6 and Exhibit 7
shown below and on the following page. As previously discussed in the History section of this report, the
subject property is further governed by Ordinance No. 94-0-29, which provided 5|gn|f cant zoning relief from
the specific setbacks and B-2 bulk regulations.

Exhibit 6 B-2 Specn‘lc Setbacks Compllance Table

Code Section m' & i "
Item Ordinance Code Requirement | .Proposed Departure
| 778 (NE mrner ‘o car wash
.addltton} e
e . 9-3-7(A)1 g 560, 709", 84", 850", | Yes
QUtE £3,Setba 81.4" and 96°-11" for vacuum
stations
20’ (overhead canopy} 2(’-0” {overhead canopy)
9%-0:18 Sect: 3 29°-6" {gas pump) 39°-5-3/4" (gas pump) Heine
101‘-0" (existmg food mart} None
9-3-7{A)4 1000 :
Plainfield Road Setback = 75’-7" for refuse storagg area | Yes
26’-10” (overhead canopy) 20°-0" {overhead canopy)
94-0-29Sect.4 | 3., {g3,piimpl] 30°-8" (gas pump) None

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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rict Compliance Table

Exhibit 7 B-2 Zoning Dist

[ 3 : . Distfics Balk = —enD NN I |
9-6B-3(A) 3 acres
Min. Lot Area 1.147 acres None
94-0-29 Sect. 6 1.147 acres
] ] ' : 292.85
Min. Lot Width 9-6B-3({C)2 200 See 9.3-12 None
. Less than 200" None
: -6B- :
MImlotiospth 3-6B-3(D) EQ (175.00' and 143.00 ot lines) | See 9-3-12
s S e
Min. Front Yard Setback 9-6B-3(E}1 60’ 56°-8" for one vacuum stetion. | Yes
{Kingery Hwy) 94-0-29 Sect. 8 20’ {overhead canopy) 20°-0" (overhead canopy) None
; 29’-6" {gas pump) 30°'-9” (gas pump)
Min. Interior Side Yard
Setback 30°-10" (car wash addition- Non
{175.00’ and 143.00’ lot | 9-6B-3(E}2 30’ north) 4
lines)
Min. Exterior Side Yard | 9-6B-3(F)3 60’
Setback 26'-10” (overhead canopy) | 26'-6” {overhead canopy)
(Plainfield Road) =2 S EE 2 36’-4” (gas pump) 37'-7” (gas pump) e
9-6B-3(E)4 40
;Wﬂ éear;ﬂrd Sgébfck 29"-7” {car wash) '13'.9" (car wash addition)
88.40" and 132.05’ lot 25’ (attendant kiosk) 16°-3" (attendant kiosk} . °
4-0-2 e
hines) 9 LA 30’-4" (food mart} Unchanged {food mart) = . Yes
4-7" {iransformer pad) "~
100"
Min. Transition Yard , - R
{from 143.00" lot line) 9-6B-3(E)5 6’ berm planted Existing woodlands to remain None
w/averstory trees spaced
every 30 o.c.
70" {refuse storage area) 83'-10" (refuse storage area)
4’ berm w/single row of
e
Requirements 94-0-29 Sect. 10 the remainder of the Existing woodlands to remain None
transition yard screened
w/double row of
evergreens, 3’ in height
and spaced 3’ o.c.
Max, Lot Coverage 9-6B-3{F) 50% 45% (22,768 sq.ft.} None
. ) 30’ to Top of Building Tower
Max. Height 9-6B8-3(G) 30 15'-4" to Top of Parapet None
Max. Floor Area Ratio 9-6B-3(H) 0.30 0.08 None

Lot Dimensions: The subject property has a minimum lot area of approximately 49,988 square feet, or 1.147
acres and a lot width of over 200 feet. The subject property has a lot depth that varies between 133 feet and
approximately 175 feet. Because the lot is a preexisting condition, a variation for reduce lot depth was never
requested in the previous planning requests because Section 9-3-12 provides an exemption. Therefore, the
proposed lot dimensions are in compliance with the Village Zoning Ordinance.

Setbacks: The proposed car was addition will require several variations from the required minimum front yard,
exterior side yard, rear yard setbacks in addition to the specific setbacks due to the location of the proposed
addition, new attendant kiosk, refuse storage area and vacuum stations. Due to the highly irregular shape of
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the site, and after the application of the 100-foot special setbacks from IL Rt. 83 (east} and Plainfield Rad
{south), a 100-foot transition yard setback (west), a 30-foot interior side yard setback (north) and a 40-foot
rear yard setback {northwest), the buildable area of this site is limited to an area of approximately 4,200 square
feet with dimensions of roughly 35 feet by 120 feet. Staff therefore recommends support of the variations with
reasons stated in the Findings of Fact section of the report.

Building Height: The maximum height of a building in the B-2 Zoning District is forty feet (30’). The proposed
building height for the car wash is thirty (30'} and is in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance.

Density and Coverage: The maximum lot coverage (building coverage) in the B-2 Zoning District is 50% per
Section 9-6B-3(F). The proposed addition and existing food mart has a building footprint of approximately
22,768 square feet. On a 1.147-acre lot, the building coverage is approximately 45% and is below the maximum
50% threshold. As a one-story building, the floor area ratio {FAR) is approximately 0.08, which is below the
minimum required 0.30 FAR. The lot coverage and FAR are in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance.

Parking & Loading

Reqguired Parking: The existing gas station provides seven (7) standard parking spots for employees and
patrons. With the expansion of the car wash, the number of parking spaces will be reduced to two (2) spaces,
resulting in a loss of five {5) parking spaces. Required parking was calculated by using the parking formula
outlined in Section 9-10-5{(K} of the Village Code. Under the uses “Automobile laundries” and “Automobile
service stations”, the zoning code requires a total of eighteen (18) parking spaces based on the parking ratios
summarized in Exhibit 8 below.

Exhibit 8 Required Parking Calculation
Req. Proposed

Code Section or

Use Ordinance Code Requirement e Spaces Departure
1 parking space for each 1.5
employees, and in addition,
standing spaces to *
accommuodate automobiles 18 14
Automobile laundry | 9-10-5{(K} awatting entrance to the facility | parking parking
equal in number to 10 times the | spaces spaces
max. capacity of the automobile | plus 60 plus10 - | Yes
faundry stacking stacking fauthorized]

94 ()25 Sert 7 U spuces

' 1 parking space for each
gasoline dispensing untt, plus 2 I
for each service bay, plus 1 Sl
space for each 200 square feet :
of floor area within an
accessory minimart

Automobile service

station Sl

* One (1} accessible space are required per Code Section 9-10-5(N).

The site will provide six {6) vacuum positions located on the east side of the car wash tunnel. While these
spaces will primarily serve the car wash customers, they are adjacent to the gas station and convenience
store and can also be used by other gas station customers. Additionally, a majority of customers utilizing the
convenience store will leave their car at the fueling positions and will therefore not require a parking space.
The parking of cars at the six (6) fueling positions in addition to the two (2) parking spaces results in the
provision of fourteen (14) parking spaces. Staff recommends approval of the proposed variation to reduce
the parking requirement from eighteen (18) parking spaces to fourteen {14} parking spaces; however,

10
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supporting documentation should be provided in order to verify appropriate parking and stacking will be
provided. This is discussed further in the Traffic Impact Study section in the following pages.

Pavement Setbacks: Pavement setbacks are regulated in the Parking Section of the Zoning Ordinance. The
proposed site plan is in compliance with the pavement setback requirements required by the Village Code and
Ordinance No. 94-0-29.

Landscaping

A significant amount of new landscaping is being provided site wide. The proposed landscaping is shown in
Attachment 8. The existing woodlands located along the western exterior side yard and rear yards will remain.
Staff is currently working with the applicant on a revised landscape plan that complies with Section 9-6-1(D)
Front And Exterior Side Yard Landscape Planting Requirements, Section 9-6B-3(E)5 Screening in Transition
Yards and Section Ten of Ordinance Nao. 94-0-29, Section 9-10-5(G)1 to Section 9-10-5{(G)4 Screening and
Landscaping Standards, and Section 9-14-2(D) Required Landscaping, Staff anticipates that only minor changes
will be required as the proposed development appears to provide sufficient landscaping, but a condition has
been added to ensure that the landscape plan will address the comments in the planning review letter outlined
in Attachment 16.

Signage
Signage details have not yet been provided by the applicant. Signage shall comply with the Village Code. A
condition has been added to ensure that any new signage shall comply with the sign ordinance.

Trash Enclosure

The petitioner is proposing a 8’ x 8-4” trash enclosure located near the entrance of the car wash. A trash
enclosure plan and details were provided by the petitioner. The proposed trash enclosure appears to comply
with Section 9-12-11 of the Village Code which requires that trash enclosures must be constructed to look like
masonry and shall appear to the color and style of the building. A condition has been added to ensure
compliance with the zoning code.

Lighting

The petitioner has submitted a photometric plan for the proposed self-storage facility. The photometric plan
is consistent with the similar project previously approved. The photometric plan has been reviewed by the
Village’s Engineer, and the plan appears to be in general compliance with the requirements of the Village
Zoning Ordinance. The lighting standards in the zoning code are very strict and the Village has been a little
relaxed in cases such as gas stations and car dealerships where a significant portion of the business is conducted
outside, increasing the need for extra illumination. There is also no residential structure adjacent to the project,
and the site is surrounded by commercial properties, with the Wendy’s to the south, Willowbrook Town Center
to the southeast, Pete’s Fresh Market to the east, and other retail to the north. The property to the west is a
regional storm water basin. Glare shield can be required if the lights are a nuisance to the houses several
hundred feet to the west. These houses will not be impacted by glare, but the lights may be visible, depending
on tree growth and angle of the light fixtures. The intersection has roadway lighting, so the minimal light cast
into the right of way is mostly cast over the driveways.

Engineering
The civil engineering drawings have been reviewed by the Village’s Civil Engineer from Christopher B. Burke
Engineering, Ltd. {CBBEL) who has the following comments:

1. The cover sheet states that there is no floodplain within 200 feet of the site. This is incorrect as there
is floodplain on the property. Please refer to Flood Insurance Rate Map panel 189 for Du Page County
dated August 1, 2019.
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2. The Du Page County Stormwater Ordinance provides that the plan reference two Du Page County
Benchmarks which were used to establish the survey datum. These must be noted on the cover page.
The floodplain limits and elevation must be shown on both Sheets C-1 and C-3.

4. It appears that the grading southwest of the carwash entrance may impact the floodplain. If there is
fill, compensatory storage will be required. Consideration should be given to modifying the plan to
avoid floodplain fill.

5. The grass area at the north end of the site is detention from a previous expansion. The voiume must
be preserved. The applicant should request a copy of the previously approved plans from the Village
for reference. Also, if there was a restrictor and it is now missing, it must be replaced.

6. Add a curb detail to the pfan set.

7. An abbreviated Storm Water Submittal must be provided. Many sections will be noted as “Not
Applicable”, but because of the wetland and floodplain on site, it must be prepared.

8. The wetland delineation must be confirmed by CBBEL staff.

9. The wetland portion of the Stormwater Submittal must include a statement that the wetlands and
buffer will not be impacted, or a discussion of impacts and mitigation if it is impacted.

w

To address the floodplain, the applicant is required to add some retaining walls to transition the grading
without impacting the floodplain, but it appears this can be achieved relatively easily. The environmental
review did not reveal any major concerns regarding any impacts to wetlands or buffer, as long as the Village
engineer’'s comments are addressed.

Traffic Impact Study

The petitioner has submitted a Traffic Impact Study, prepared by KLOA, to examine background traffic
conditions in the proposed development area, assess the impact that the proposed development will have on
traffic conditions in the area, and determine if any roadway or access improvements are necessary to
accommodate traffic generated by the proposed development.

The Traffic Study has been reviewed by the Village's traffic consultant from Gewalt Hamilton Associates (GHA)
and the review raised some concerns of site access from the Plainfield Road driveway. Due to the Plainfield
Road eastern access proximity to Kingery Highway, the estimated number of U-turns (traffic entering the site
from Plainfield Road eastbound), the ability to serve deliveries / fuel-tanker trucks, as well as to minimize
conflicts on the adjacent roadway network and the pedestrian environment (crossing of driveways), it is
recommended that the Plainfield Road eastern access be closed and the western access serve entry/exit to
the site. A condition of zoning approval has been added to ensure that all outstanding comments from the
Village Traffic Engineer shall be addressed prior to final zoning approval from the Village Board.

As discussed previously in the Parking & Loading section of this report, it does not appear that the site will
provide either adequate parking or stacking to accommodate the site uses to satisfy Village Code. The Village
Traffic Engineer has thus requested that the petitioner provide supporting documentation in order to verify
appropriate parking and stacking will be provided, i.e., ITE Parking Generation, Sth Edition parking demand
calculations, local data collected at existing facilities, and/or perform a queuing analysis based on the projected
traffic and operational characteristics (time to pay, time to load on conveyor, time in tunnel, etc.). A revised
stacking exhibit was requested to illustrate the anticipated demand, without blocking access to/from the site.
Additional supporting operational characteristics {maximum number of employees present at one time, use of
vacuum stations / are they free with wash, etc.) was also requested. Staff recommends that the approval of

the variations for reduced stacking rely on and be determined by this supporting documentation.

Tri-State Fire District Review
The Tri-State Fire District reviewed the proposed site plan and did not find any significant issues with the
proposed site plan.
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Ducky's Car Wash Addition Ann Choti, Planning Consultant

Findings of Fact

Standards for Special Use Permit

Section 9-14-5(B) of the Willowbrook Zoning Ordinance establishes seven {7) standards for a Special Use
Permit that must be evaluated by the Plan Commission and Village Board. Recommendations may include
conditions of approval if appropriate to mitigate any negative impacts created by the special use permit.
The applicant’s responses are provided in Attachment 2.

Standards for Variations

Section 9-14-4(E) of the Willowbrook Zoning Ordinance establishes seven (7) standards for variations that
must be evaluated by the Plan Commission and Village Board. Recommendations may include conditions
of approval if appropriate to mitigate any negative impacts created by the variations. The applicant’s
responses are provided in Attachment 3.

Summary of New Variations Requested
The purpose of this public hearing is to consider a petition requesting approval of an amendment to an existing
special use for the following variations:

1) Approval of a variation from Section 9-3-7(A}1 to reduce the minimum required setback on lllinois
Route 83 from one hundred feet {100') to seventy-seven feet, eight inches (77'-8") for the northeast
portion of the car wash addition; to fifty-six feet, eight inches {56’-8"), seventy-four feet, nine inches
(74'-9”), eighty feet, four inches (80°-4"), eighty-five feet, ten inches (85’-10"), ninety-one feet, four
inches {91°-4”) and ninety-six feet, eleven inches (96’-11") for the six (6) vacuum stations.

2} Approval of a variation from Section 9-3-7(A)4 to reduce the minimum required setback on Plainfield
Road from one hundred feet (100') to seventy-six feet, seven inches (76'-7”) for the refuse storage
area.

3) Approval of a variation from Section 9-6B-3(E}1 to reduce the front yard setback on Illinois Route 83
from sixty feet (60') to fifty-six feet, eight inches (56’-8”) for the northernmost vacuum station.

4) Approval of a variation from Section 9-6B-3(E)4 to reduce the rear yard setback from forty feet (40')
to thirteen feet, nine inches {13°-9”) for the southwest portion of the car wash addition; to four feet,
seven inches {4'-7") for the transformer pad, and to sixteen feet, three inches (16’-3”} for the new
attendant kiosk.

5) Approval of a variation from Section 9-10-5(K) to reduce the minimum parking requirements from
eighteen (18) parking spaces to fourteen {14} parking spaces, and to reduce the minimum number of
stacking spaces for automobile laundries from sixty (60} spaces to ten (10} spaces for the existing
automobile laundry.

6) Approval of a variation from Section 9-14-2(D)2(c)4 “Border Plantings and Foundation Plantings” to
reduce the minimum foundation landscape area from seven feet {7’} to zero feet along the southern
building fagade of the automobile laundry.

The variations proposed by the new scope of work directly relate to non-conforming conditions already
implemented on the existing site. These variations are required to allow for the modernization and expansion
of the existing car wash, and to provide proper safe and secure measures for all future users at the subject

property.
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Recommended Conditions of Approval
Based on plans submitted by the petitioner, Staff recommends the following conditions to be included in a
motion for this case.

1. All plans and documents shall be revised and resubmitted as required by Village staff and the Plan
Commission as indicated in the staff report or as discussed during the February 5, 2020 meeting, and
approved by staff prior to being forwarded to the Village Board for final consideration. Final
documents forwarded to the Village Board shall be newly revision dated and identified “For Village
Board Approval”.

2. Al outstanding comments from the Village Engineer shall be addressed prior to final zoning approval
from the Village Board.

3. All outstanding comments from the Village Traffic Engineer shall be addressed prior to final zoning
approval from the Village Board. Approval of the variations for reduced stacking spaces and parking
spaces shall be adjusted subject to the recommendation of the Village Traffic Engineer.

4. Final engineering plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Village Engineer prior to issuance of a
building permit by the Village of Willowbrook.

5. The petitioner shall obtain all necessary permits from Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT)
and/or DuPage County Division of Transportation (DuDOT)} prior to performing any work within the IL
Route 83/Plainfield Road rights-of-way. The petitioner shall provide a copy of IDOT’s and/or DuDOT's
review of the car wash addition plans and copies of all correspondence with said agencies to Village
Staff before final zoning approval, as applicable.

6. The construction and use of the car wash addition shall at all times be in substantial compliance with
the site improvement plans, architectural floor plans, landscape plans and building elevations
submitted by the petitioner.

7. The landscape plans shall be approved subject to the applicant’s compliance with the planning review
letter dated January 22, 2020, issued by the Village of Willowbrook, and included as Attachment 13.

8. Alllandscaped areas shall be constructed and landscape material installed prior to the issuance of any
permanent occupancy permit for the subject realty, or such earlier time, as is reasonably practical.

9. A separate sign permit shall be obtained for the proposed building signage, pursuant to the Viilage
Code.

10. The trash enclosure shall be constructed to look like masonry and shall appear similar to the color and
style of the building.

11. The architectural drawings shall be revised to include full, colored building elevations and shall specify
the colors.

12. The special use permit for the proposed development shall be null and void if construction for the
proposed use is not commenced within eighteen (18) months of the date of any approval of the special
use by the Village Board.

Staff Recommendation

It will be necessary for the applicant to complete any minor changes required, which include any driveway
access changes, landscape plan modifications, and addressing the comments regarding stormwater, floodplain
and wetland buffer. Staff will be recommending that the Village Board approve the special use petition subject
to the applicant addressing these items and subsequently approved by staff, prior to final zoning approval for
Ducky’s Car Wash Addition. Upon the applicant’s completion of any required revisions, an ordinance will be
prepared and this item will be placed on a future Village Board agenda for consideration.

Staff supports the requested special use amendment and variations and recommends the Plan Commission
approve the following sample motion on the following page:
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Sample Motion

Based on the submitted petition and testimony prasented, | move that the Plan Commission forward its
Findings of Fact to the Mayor and Village Board for special uses and variations as shown in Attachments 1
and 2 of the Staff Report prepared for the February 5, 2020 Pian Commiission for PC 20-01, and recommend
appraval of an amendment to the existing special use and requested variations, as listed in the Staff Report
prepared for PC 20-01 for the February 5, 2020 Plan Commission meeting, subject to the following
“Recommended Conditions of Approval” listed in the Staff rRport prepared for PC 20-02 for the February 5,
2020 Plan Commission meeting:

1. Al plans and documents shall be revised and resubmitted as required by Village staff and the Plan
Commission as indicated in the staff report or as discussed during the February 5, 2020 meeting, and
approved by staff prior to being forwarded to the Village Board for final consideration. Final
documents forwarded to the Village Board shall be newly revision dated and identified “For Vitlage
Board Approval”.

2. Al outstanding comments from the Village Engineer shall be addressed prior to final zoning approval
from the Village Board.

3. All outstanding comments from the Village Traffic Engineer shall be addressed prior to final zoning
approval from the Village Board. Approval of the vanations for reduced stacking spaces and parking
spaces shall be adjusted subject to the recommendation of the Village Traffic Engineer.

4. Final engineering pians shall be reviewed and approved by the Village Engineer prior to issuance of a
building permit by the Village of Willowbrook.

5. The petitioner shall obtain all necessary permits from illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT)
and/or DuPage County Division of Transportation {DuDOT) prior to performing any work within the IL
Route 83/Plainfield Road rights-of-way. The petitioner shall provide a copy of IDOT's and/or DUDOT’s
review of the car wash addition plans and copies of all correspondence with said agencies to Village
Staff before finai zoning approval, as applicable.

6. The construction and use of the car wash addition shall at all times be in substantial compliance with
the site improvement plans, architectural floor plans, landscape plans and building elevations
submitted by the petitioner.

7. The landscape plans shall be approved subject to the applicant’s compliance with the planning review
letter dated January 22, 2020, issued by the Village of Willowbrook, and included as Atiachment 13.

8. Alllandscaped areas shali be constructed and landscape material installed prior to the issuance of any
permanent occupancy permit for the subject realty, or such earlier time, as is reasonably practical.

9. A separate sign permit shall be obtained for the proposed building signage, purstiant to the Village
Code.

10, The trash enclosure shali be constructed to look like masonry and shall appear similar to the color and
style of the building.

11. The architectural drawtngs shall be revised to include full, colored bullding elevations and shall specify
the colors.

12. The special use permit for the proposed development shall be null and void if construction for the
proposed use is not commenced within eighteen (18) months of the date of any approval of the special
use by the Village Beard.
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Attachment 1
Notice of Public Hearing

{2 pages)
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ZONING HEARING CASE NO. 20-01

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Plan Commission of the Village of Willowbrook,
DuPage County, Illinois, will conduct a public hearing at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission
on the 5th of February, 2020 at the hour of 7:00 P.M. in the Willowbrook Police Department
Training Room, 7760 S. Quincy St, Willowbrook, IL 60527.

The purpose of this public hearing shall be to consider a petition requesting approval of an
amendment to a special use permit within the B-2 Community Shopping District zoning
classification, including certain variations from Title 9 of the Village Code. The applicant seeks to
modernize and enlarge the existing car wash with associated site improvements at the property
legally described below, located at the northwest corner of the intersection of Illinois Route 83 and
Plainfield Road.

LOTS 11, 12, 13 AND 14 IN BLOCK 46 IN TRI-STATE VILLAGE UNIT NUMBER 5, BEING A
SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 23 AND PART OF
THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 38
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 20, 1944 AS DOCUMENT 465114, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL THOSE PORTIONS GRANTED,
CONVEYED AND DEDICATED TO THE STATE OF ILLINOIS PER DOCUMENTS R61-19732
AND R61-21445.

Described Property Contains 1.147 Acres
PINs: 09-23-310-024 and 09-23-310-025
ADDRESS: 7000 S. KINGERY, WILLOWBROOK IL 60527

The applicant for this petition is David Schaefer, for the property owner Magpoon
Management, Inc. (Mabboob Abbas).

Copies of the application and related documentation are on file in the office of the Village
Planner, Village of Willowbrook, 835 Midway, Willowbrook, Illinois, and are available for public
inspection. Any individual with a disability requiring a reasonable accommodation in order to
participate in any public meeting held under the authority of the Village of Willowbrook should
contact Roy Giuntoli, Village of Willowbrook, 835 Midway, Willowbrook, IL. 60527, or call (630)
920-2262, Monday through Friday, between 8:30 A.M. and 4:30 P.M., within a reasonable time
before the meeting. Requests for sign language interpreters should be made a minimum of five
working days in advance of the meeting.

All persons desiring to be heard in support or opposition to the application shall be afforded
an opportunity and may submit their statements orally, in written form, or both. This hearing may be
recessed to another date if not concluded on the evening scheduled.

/s/ Brian Pabst

Village Administrator
(630) 920-2261

Published in the January 16,.2020 edition of The Doings Newspaper.
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Staff Report to the Plan Commission February 5, 2020
Ducky’s Car Wash Addition Ann Choi, Planning Consultant

Attachment 2
Special Use Standards and Findings for PC 20-01 Ducky's Car Wash Addition

9-14-5(B): Standards for Special Use

The Plan Commission shall not recommend and the Board of Trustees shall not grant a Special Use Permit from
the regulaticn of this title unless affirmative findings of fact shall be made as to all of the standards hereinafter
set forth, which findings of fact shall be based upon evidence adduced upon the hearing held thereon, that:

(a)

(B}

Q

That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.

Applicant Finding: The proposed car wash addition will not be detrimental nor endanger the public. When
completed, this facility will provide a benefit to the community as a service and visual gateway into
Willowbrook.

Staff Finding: The Village previously approved a special use permit for a gas station on the subject
property in 1977, and subsequently amended the special use permit on several occasions to approve a
car wash use and food mart use in 1980, 1984 and 1994, respectively. These facilities have operated on
the subject property for many years without endangering the public health, safety, morals, comfort or
general welfare.

That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values
within the neighborhood.

Applicant Finding: The proposed car wash addition will not be injurious nor diminish property values. The
property is currently established as a gas station and car wash. We are only [ooking to update and improve
the facility. When completed, this updated and renovated facility will improve the neighborhood and
property values.

Staff Finding: The existing car wash has currently operated in harmony with the surrounding properties.
The area to the north of the site is established as retail shops. The area northwest is zoned B-1 and is
vacant, and is most likely undevelopable. lllinois Route 83 and Plainfield Road are substantial buffers to
the properties located to the east and south. The area to the northeast is zone B-2 and is occupied by the
Pete’s Fresh Market/Willows Shopping Center, as well as the BP gas station and car wash on the northeast
corner of the intersection. The car wash at the BP gas station appears to be similar in scale to the existing
car wash in the proposed development as it appears to only accommodate up to a maximum of two cars.

That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

Applicant Finding: The property is currently established as a gas statton and car wash. We are only looking
to update and improve the facility.

Staff Finding: The existing car wash has currently operated in harmony with the surrounding properties.

The area to the north of the site is established as retail shops. The area northwest is zoned B-1 and is
vacant, and is most likely undevelopable. lllinois Route 83 and Plainfield Road are substantial buffers to
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{D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

the properties located to the east and south. The area to the northeast is zone B-2 and is occupied by the
Pete’s Fresh Market and out-lot, as well as the BP gas station and car wash on the northeast corner of the
intersection. The car wash at the BP gas station appears to be similar in scale to the existing car wash in
the proposed development as it appears to only accommodate up to a maximum of two cars. The car
wash expansion will offer a new service that is not offered in the immediate vicinity.

That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being
provided.

Applicant Finding: The property is currently established as a gas station and car wash. We are only looking
to update and improve the facility. All utilities, drainage and facilities will comply with code.

Staff Finding: The site has been and will continue to be serviced by all necessary utilities and drainage
facilities which are and will be adequate for the proposed expansion.

That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

Applicant Finding: The property currently has more than adequate ingress and egress. Additional road
improvements are currently being completed by IDOT.

Staff Finding: Comments regarding traffic and circulation will be addressed to minimize traffic congestion
in the public streets prior to final zoning approval.

That the special use shall in all other respects conform te the applicable regulations of the district in
which it isolated, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board
pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission.

Applicant Finding: The proposed addition will conform to all codes and regulations.

Staff Finding: The special use shall in all other respects conform to the applicable regulations of the
district in which it is located. The car wash expansion and will comply with the regulations of the zoning
ordinance, pending approval of the requested variations.

Conditions in the area have substantially changed, and at least one year has elapsed since any denial
by the Village Board of any prior application for a special use permit that would have authorized
substantially the same use of all or part of the site. (Ord. 97-0-05, 1-27-1997).

Applicant Finding: To the best of my knowledge, there have been no previous application denials within
the last year.

Staff Finding: Conditions in the area have substantially changed due to the development of Pete’s Fresh
Market/Willows Shopping Center. The intersection of lllinois Route 83 and Plainfield Road are still under
construction and additional road improvements are currently being completed by IDOT. At feast one year
has elapsed since any denial by the Viilage Board of any prior application for a special use permit that
would have authorized substantially the same use of all or part of the site.
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Attachment 3
Variation Standards and Findings for PC 20-01 Ducky’s Car Wash Addition

9-14-4(E): Standards for Variations

The Plan Commission shall not recommend and the Board of Trustees shall not grant variations from the
reguiation of this title unless affirmative findings of fact shall be made as to all of the standards hereinafter set
forth, which findings of fact shall be based upon evidence adduced upon the hearing held thereon, that:

(A) The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the
conditions altowed by the regulations of the district in which it is located.

Applicant Finding: The car washing equipment and facility is outdated compared to similar nearby car
wash locations. In order to improve the car washing capability, new and additional equipment is
required, which is the reason for the proposed car wash addition. The owner is looking to improve both
the interior car washing equipment/experience and exterior appearance.

Staff Finding: The site is highly irregular and is subject to multiple special setback requirements. After
application of the 100-foot special setbacks from lllinois Route 83 (east) and Plainfield Road (south), as
well as a 100-foot transition yard special setback (west), a 30-foot interior side yard setback (north) and
a 40-foot rear yard setback (northwest), the buildable area of this 49,988 square foot site is limited to
an area of approximately 4,200 square feet with dimensions of roughly 35 feet by 120 feet. Thus, the
remaining buildable area does not allow the property to be used to yield a reasonable return. The Village
approved prior special use permit requests and numerous variations on the subject property for the food
mart, gasoline pump dispensers, gas station canopy, attendant kiosk, and refuse storage area as the
Village has found that the property cannot yield a reasonable return on several prior occasions.

(B} The proposed variation wili not merely serve as a convenience to the applicant, but will alleviate some
demonstrable and unusual hardship which will result if the strict letter of the regulations were carried
out and which is not generally applicable to property within the same district.

Applicant Finding: The existing building was constructed closer to the rear of the property line than
currently allowed by code. It is currently an eye-sore and the first thing people see when entering
Willowbrook from the South. The existing car wash tunnel is too small to effectively clean cars.

Staff Finding: The requested variations are necessary to alleviate an unusual hardship in making
reasonable use of the property. The requirements for providing eighteen parking spaces on site, sixty
stacking spaces for the car wash, and complying with certain setback distances for the refuse storage
area, new attendant kiosk and vacuum equipment a would create a severe hardship on the property.
The subject property is highly irregular in shape and is encumbered by steep grades along the western
portion of the property.

(C) The alleged hardship has not been created by any person presently having a proprietary interest in
the premises.

Applicant Finding: The building is existing and was purchased as such by the property owner.
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(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

Staff Finding: The hardship to the applicant is created by the site’s irregular site configuration and the
requirement of multiple special setbacks which restrict the buildable area.

The proposed variation will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other
property or improvements in the neighborhood.

Applicant Finding: The proposed car wash addition will not be detrimental nor injurious to the
neighborhood. When completed, this facility will have a new and improved appearance for the
community as well as provide an improved car washing experience for its patrons.

Staff Finding: The proposed use is similar to the existing use and is compatible with nearby existing uses
which are primarily commercial. The proposed car wash addition will not be detrimental to the public
welfare nor injuriocus to other property or improvements in the neighborhood.

The proposed variation wiil not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property,
substantially increase congestion in the public streets, increase the danger of fire, or endanger the
public safety.

Applicant Finding: Adjacent neighbors are far enough away that he proposed addition will not impact
their light and air nor will it substantially increase traffic or the risk of fire.

Staff Finding: The proposed variations will not impair the supply of light and air to adjacent properties.
The review of the Traffic Impact Study resulted in an observation that the site access driveways currently
operate at acceptable levels of service and will continue to do so with the proposed car wash expansion
traffic. The increase in site traffic will have minimal impact on adjacent roadway operations. The
proposed variations do not create any danger to public safety or increase the danger of fire.

The proposed variation will not alter the essential character of the locality. {Ord. 77-0-4, 2-14-1977)

Applicant Finding: Approval of the proposed variation will comply with the spirit and intent of Title 9 of
this code.

Staff Finding: The proposed variations will permit the expansion of a use that currently already operates
and is consistent and compatible with the development in the area.

The proposed variation is in harmony with the spirit and intent of this title. {Ord. 97-0-05, 1-27-1997)

Applicant Finding: Approval of the proposed variations will comply with the intent of Title 9 as explained
above.

Note: We are seeking relief from the required front and rear yard building setbacks, as well as distance
relief for the new kiosk and vacuum equipment as outlined in the Village of Willowbrook’s Exhibit B,
dated February 15, 1994,

Staff Finding: The proposed variations will allow modernization and beautification of the existing use
and will result in a convenient, safe, tax-productive and aesthetic use of the property.
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Attachment 4
Legal Description

PINS:
09-23-310-024
09-23-310-025

LOTS 11, 12, 13 AND 14 IN BLOCK 46 IN TRI-STATE VILLAGE UNIT NUMBER 5, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 23 AND PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 20, 1944 AS DOCUMENT 465114, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL THOSE PORTIONS GRANTED, CONVEYED AND DEDICATED
TO THE STATE OF ILLINOIS PER DOCUMENTS R61-19732 AND R61-21445,
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Attachment 5
Plat of Survey
{1 Sheet)
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Attachment 6
Site Plan
{1 Sheet)
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Attachment 7
Architectural Drawing
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JOB:

BONO 19085
CONSULTING DESIGNED:
INC. DATE:|  10/29/2019
1018 Busse Highway, Park Ridge, IL 60068 / 1601 Bond St., Suite 305, Naperville, IL 60563
PROJECT: NEW CAR WASH, 7000 KINGERY, WILLOWBROOK
SUBJECT: Engineer's Estimate of Probable Construction Cost
Demolition
ltem Quantity Units Unit Price ltem Price
Remove curbs and walls 550 LF $2.50 $1,375.00
Remove asphalt and concrete 6,200 SF $1.00 $6,200.00
Remove Transformers 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Remove Landscaping 1 EA $750.00 $750.00
Remove Storm Sewer 16 - LF $10.00 $160.00
Demolition Subtotal = $9,485.00
Surface Improvements .
ltem Quantity | Units Unit Price ltem Price
Parking Lot Pavement 590 SY $30.00 | $17,700.00
6" Barrier Curb 375 LF $10.00 $3,750.00
Heavy Duty Concrete Pavement 15 SY $50.00 $750.00
Concrete Sidewalk 525 SF $5.00 $2,625.00
Surface Improvements Subtotal = |  $24,825.00
LHilities
ltem Quantity | Units Unit Price ltem Price
Raise Existing Storm Sewer 1 EA $750.00 $750.00
24" Type C Catch Basin 1 EA $1,500.00 $1,500.00
10" PVC Storm Sewer 50 LF $35.00 $1,750.00
Utilities Subtotal = $4,000.00
Erosion Control
ltem Quantity | Units Unit Price Item Price
Silt Fence 450 LF $2.50 $1,125.00
Inlet Filters <] EA $250.00 $1,500.00
Erosion Control Subtotal = $2,625.00
Grading & Restoration
ltem Quantity Units Unit Price ltem Price
Restore and seed all disturbed areas 0.5 AC $3,000.00 |  $1,500.00
Plant native bushes and seed within wetland buffer zone 1 LS TBD $0.00
Restoration Subtotal = $1,500.00
Engineer's Estimate of Probable Construction Cost = $42,435.00

N:\Naperville Projects\7000 Kingery, Willowbrook\01 Permit Drawings\01 Latest lssue\lssue1.2 RC\EOPC
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CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD.
9575 W Higgins Road, Suite 800 Rosemont, lllinois 60018-4920 Tel (847) 823-0500 Fax (847) 823-0520

Subject:

Attention:

Dear Ann:

January 17, 2020

Village of Willowbrook
835 Midway Drive
Willowbrook, IL 60527

Ann Choi

7000 Kingery — Car Wash Addition
(CBBEL Project No. 900144.H211)

As requested, we have reviewed the proposed site engineering plans and supporting
documents for the above property prepared by Bono Consulting, Inc. and dated October 29,
2019. We have not reviewed the building architectural drawings. The following comments
are submitted for your consideration:

1.

The cover sheet states that there is no floodplain within 100 feet of the site. This
is incorrect as there is floodplain on the property. Please refer to Flood Insurance
Rate Map panel 188 for Du Page County dated August 1, 2019.

The Du Page County Stormwater Ordinance provides that the plan reference two
Du Page County Benchmarks which were used to establish the survey datum.
These must be noted on the cover page.

The floodplain limits and elevation must be shown on both Sheets C-1 and C-3

It appears that the grading southwest of the carwash entrance may impact the
floodplain. [f there is fill, compensatory storage will be required. Consideration
should be given to modifying the plan to avoid floodplain fill.

The grass area at the north end of the site is detention from a previous expansion.
The volume must be preserved. The applicant should request a copy of the
previously approved plans from the Village for reference. Also, if there was a
restrictor and it is now missing, it must be replaced.

Add a curb detail to the plan set.

An abbreviated Storm Water Submittal must be provided. Many sections will be
noted as “Not Applicable”, but because of the wetland and floodplain on site, it
must be prepared.

The wetland delineation must be confirmed by CBBEL staff.

The wetland portion of the Stormwater Submittal must include a statement that the
wetlands and buffer will not be impacted, or a discussion of impacts and mitigation
if it is impacted.

NAWILLOWBROOKWS0144H'5\H200-H299490144H21 1\AdmimL 1.Chol. 7000KIngery.011720.dotx



If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
Yo Lo
j/ {f/{:
AN ./ T
SRR IO
&

Daniel L. Lynch, PE, CFM
Head, Municipal Engineering Department

L1.Choi. 7000Kingery.011720.docx
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Project Traffic Review #1

To:

Ms. Ann Choi
Planning Consultant, Village of Willowbrook

From: Lynn M. Means, P.E., PTOE

';ai j W GEWALT HAMILTON

Il ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL 60061
TeyL 847.478.9700 ® Fax 847.478.9701

www.gha-engineers.com

Senior Transportation Engineer

Date; January 18, 2020

Subject  Ducky's Car Wash Addition

7000 8. Kingery Highway (IL Route 83)
Willowbrook, lilinois

Per your request, Gewalt Hamilton Associates, Inc. (GHA) has reviewed the materials submitted on January 6,
2020 for the above captioned project pertaining to traffic, parking and on-site circulation. Conclusions of this
effort and recommendations are presented below:

Traffic Impact Evaluation

1.
2.

The Traffic Impact Evaluation (TIE) prepared by KLOA follows guidelines established by the Institute of
Transportation Engineers (ITE). We generally concur with the KLOA description of existing conditions.

Kingery Highway (IL. Route 83) is under the jurisdiction of the llinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) and
Plainfield Road (County #31) is under the jurisdiction of the DuPage County Division of Transportation (DuDOT).
Please provide copies of all correspondence with IDOT and/or DuDOT, as applicable.

The study appropriately includes weekday moming (7-9 AM), weekday evening {4-6 PM) and Saturday midday
(12 - 2PM) peak hour fraffic counts at key intersections within the study area.

The KLOA study included a year 2040 design horizon using volumes summarized in the Intersection Design
Study (IDS) prepared for the Kingery Highway and Plainfield Road improvements, which were under construction
at the time of the study. These improvements were also considered in the future analyses, as well as a 10 percent
increase in existing site traffic volumes were included to account for the reduction associated with the construction
activities.

Trip generation estimates for the proposed car wash addition were appropriately calculated based on published
rates contained in the current edition, 10t Edition, of the ITE Trip Generation Handbook, using Land Use Code
948, Automated Car Wash. Note: ITE does not have trip rates for an automatic car wash in the weekday mormning
peak hour. Please provide backup documentation on how the trips were generated during this timeframe.
Studies have shown that for car wash / services developments, a substantial portion of the site-generated vehicle
trips are already present in the adjacent passing stream of traffic, as well as internal frips occur between the land
uses within multi-use developments. The KLOA study did not reduce the trip generation estimates for either
pass-by or internal capture trips. The study also did not discount for the existing car wash trips. This suggests
that KLOA has analyzed the maximum site impacts at the study area intersections.

The directional distribution of new development site traffic appears appropriate based on current travel patterns,
the operational characteristics of the street system and site access.

The capacity analyses summaries provided in the study indicate that the site access driveways currently operate
at acceptable levels of service and will continue to do so with the proposed car wash expansion traffic. The
increase in site traffic will have minimal impact on adjecent roadway operations. GHA concurs with these findings.
Access to the site is currently provided via three driveways: one right-in/right-out (RIRO) on Kingery Highway
and two full access driveways on Plainfield Road. With the intersection improvements at Kingery Highway and
Plainfield Road, the two Plainfield Road access driveways will be restricted to RIRO via the provision of a barrier
median. The KLOA study recommended in connection with the proposed development the eastern access be

6601 Stephens Station Road, Unit 107, Columbia, MO 65202 = Tgy, 573.397.6800 = Fax 573.397.6001



Ducky's Car Wash Addition
7000 S. Kingery Highway
Willowbrook, Illinois

restricted to entry only and the western access to egress only via modifications to the median island on site, along
with appropriate signage. However, due to the Plainfield Road eastern access proximity to Kingery Highway, the
estimated number of U-tums (traffic entering the site from Plainfield Road eastbound), the ability fo serve
deliveries / fuel-fanker trucks, as well as to minimize conflicts on the adjacent roadway network and the pedestrian
environment (crossing of driveways), it is recommended that the Plainfield Road eastern access be closed and
the western access serve entry/exit to the site.

10. GHA concurs with the study recommendation to provide a stop bar, stop sign and right-tum only sign for outbound
movements at the site’s Kingery Highway access.

Site Plan

11. Truck turn exhibits should be provided that show the full turning maneuvers for delivery/trash/emergency vehicles
accessing the site to verify adequate circulation is provided with the proposed site and recommended access
modifications.

12. The site is currently served by seven parking spaces. With the proposed car wash addition, the number of spaces
will be reduced to two, including one accessible space. Six vacuum positions will also be provided, along with a
space at each fueling position. The site plan provided in the KLOA study depicts a maximum stacking of 6 vehicles
at the car wash, without impacting site access or circulation. Nofe: The Traffic Control Plan shows a vehicle
queue of 10 at the car wash; however, access to/from Plainfield Road is blocked under this scenario.

For the car wash use, Village Code requires one parking space per each 1.5 employees, as well as standing
spaces (stacking) to accommodate a vehicle queue of 10 times the maximum capacity of the car wash {maximum
number of vehicles in the tunnel at one time). Nofe: Ordinance No. 94-0-29, Section Twelve, granted a reduction
in the stacking spaces from twenty to fen spaces for the current car wash use on the site. For the gasoline station
component, Code requires one space per each vehicle fueling position, as well as one space per each 200
square-feet of floor area within the convenience store.

Accordingly, it does not appear that the site will provide either adequate parking or stacking to accommodate the
site uses to satisfy Village Code. Supporting documentation should be provided in order to verify appropriate
parking and stacking will be provided, i.e., ITE Parking Generation, 5% Edition parking demand calculations, local
data collected at existing facilities, and/or perform a queuing analysis based on the projected traffic and
operational characteristics (fime to pay, time to load on conveyor, time in tunnel, etc.). A revised stacking exhibit
should be provided that illustrates the anticipated demand, without blocking access to/from the site. Additional
supporting operational characteristics (maximum number of employees present at one time, use of vacuum
stations / are they free with wash, efc.) should also be provided.
13. The Site Plan should include the recommended Plainfield Road access modifications (see comment 9 above).

Traffic Control Plan

14. The Traffic Control Plan should include the recommended right-tum only signage at the site egress to both
Kingery Highway and Plainfield Road, per the KLOA study.

15. The plan should include “Do Not Enter” signage at the terminus of the car wash tunnel exit lane.

16. This plan should also include the Plainfield Road access modifications (closure of the eastemn access), with
appropriate signage.

* * * * * * * * * L] * *

We hope you find these comments helpful in your assessment of the proposed development. Should you have any
questions please do not hesitate to contact GHA at 847-478-9700.

5584.500_7000 S Kingery_Duckys Car Wash Addition_Traffic Review 1_01.16.2020

Gewalt Hamiiton Associates, Inc. - Page 2
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Mayor
Frank A. Trilla

Village Clerk
Leray R. Hansen

Yillags Trustees
Sue Berglund
Umberto Davi
Terrence Kelly
Michael Mistele
Gayle Neal

Paul Oggerino

Village
Administrator

Brian Pabst

Chlef of Police

Robert Schaller

Director of
Finance

Carrie Dittman

i3 835 Midway Drive
y S Willowbrook, Il. 60527-5549

Phone: (630) 323-8215 Fax: (630) 323-0787 www.willowbrookil.org

January 22, 2020

Atten: David Schasfer
2500 S. Highland Avenue, Suite 340
Lomhard, IL 60148

Re: Ducky's Car Wash Addition Planning Review #1

Mr. Schasfer,

Planning staff has reviewed the preliminary plans, submitted January 2, 2020, for the Ducky's Car
Wash Addition, located at 7000 S. Kingery. The preliminary plans have been submitted as part of a
petition to the Village of Willowbrook for an emendment to the special use and approval of several
variations. The following plans and reporis have been reviewad per the requirements of the Village
of Willowbrook Zoning Ordinance:

1. Legal Description — 1 sheet, received by the Village on the date, January 3, 2020.
2. Plat of Survey — 1 sheet, prepared by Professional Land Surveying, inc., and dated
September 13, 2019.
3. Site Plan - 1 sheet, Sheet CV, prepared by David A. Schaefer Architects PC, and dated
10/4/2010.
4. Architectural Drawings — 5 sheets, Shest Nos. A1-A5, prepared by David A. Schaefer
Architects PG, and bearing the latest revision date of 10-4-2019.
5. Civil Engineering Plans — 4 sheets, Sheet Nos. C0-C3, prepared by Bono Consulting
Inc., and bearing an issue date of October 29, 2018,
8. Construction Easement Documents — 4 documents in total:
a. R1944-485114
b. R1961-019732
€. R1961-021445
d. R1892-119876 (Easement Agreement)
7. Engineer's Estimate of Probabia Construction Cost — 1 page, prepared by Bono
Consuiting, Inc., and dated October 29, 2019.
8. Trafflc Impact Evaluation — 58 pages, prepared by Kenlg, Lindgren, O'Hara, Aboona,
Inc., and dated Oclober 11, 2019.
8. Traffic Control Plan — 1 sheet, Sheet No. T1, prepared by David A. Schaefer Architects
PC, and bearing a revision date of 10/4/2018.
10. Traffic Regulation Agreement — © pages, dated December 31, 2019.
11. Landscape Pians — 2 sheets, prepared by Kestrel Design, and bearing a revision date of
November 12, 2019.
12. Phatometric Plan (Exterior Lighting Layout) — 16 pages, prepared by Red Leonard
Associates, and dated 10/28/19, .
13. Construction Schedule — 4 pages, prepared by Skyiine Builders, dated 10/21/19.
14. Wetland Delineation Report — 39 pages, prepared by Gary R. Weber Assoclates Inc.,
and dated August 27, 2019. Includes EcoCAT Report — 2 pages, dated 8/27/19,
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835 Midway Drive
Willowbrook, IL 60527-5549

Phone: (630) 323-8215 Fax: (630) 323-0787 www.willowbrookil.org

Please address the following items:

Outstanding Items;
1. Piease submit the Kane DuPage Solil and Water Conservation District Land Use

Op!nlon that is required as part of this application.

3 by o s&- Revise the 70°

requirement to 100’ requirement.

3. The location of the transformer pad should be consistent on all drawings.

4. Confirm that the gross floor area of the car wash addition is 1,120 sq.ft. or 1,351 sq.iL
since the areas shown on Sheet A1 under Lot Coverage a FAR are different.

5. See Comments under the section "Traffic Comments on Site Plan” balow,

Preliminary Architectural Plans
8. The building elevations and Sheet AS (Wall Section 4) indicate a second level at within the

“fower elements”. Include the fioor areas (sq.f.) praposed per level and if there Is a
second fevel, provide those floor plans,

Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd., Inc. (CBBEL) has reviewed the proposed slte
engineering plans and supporting documents for the above property prepared by Bono
Conaulting, Inc. and dated October 29, 2019, The following comments are submitted for your
conslderation:

Ereliminary Engineering Plans

7. The cover sheet states that there is no fiocdplain within 100 feet of the site. This is
incorrect as there Is floodplain on the properly. Please refer to Fioed Insurance Rate Map
pane! 188 for Du Page County dated August 1, 2019,

8. The Du Page County Stormwater Ordinance provides that the plan reference two Du Page
County Benchmarks which were used to establish the survey datum. These must be noted
on the cover page.

8. Ths floodplain limits and elevation must be shown on both Sheets C-1 and C-3.

10. it appears that the grading southwest of the carwash entrance may impact the fioodplain.
If there is fill, compensatory storage will be required. Consideration should be given to
modifying the plan to avoid floodplain fill,

11. The grass area at the north end of the site is detention from a previous expansion. The
volume must be preserved. The applicant should request a copy of the previously
approved plans from the Village for reference. Also, if there was a restrictor and it is now
missing, it must be replaced.

12. Add a curb detail to the plan set.

13. An abbreviated Storm Water Submittal must be provided. Many sections will be noted as
“Not Applicable”, but because of the wetland and floodplain on site, it must be prepared.

14. The wetland defineation must be confirmed by CBBEL staff.

15. The wetland portion of the Stormwater Submittal must include a statement that the
wetlands and buffer will not be impacted, or a discussion of impacts and mitigation if it is
impacted.



Frank A. Trilla

Village Clerk
Leroy R. Hansen

Village Trustees
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835 Midway Drive
Willowbrook, IL. 60527-5549

Phone: (630) 323-8215 Fax: (830)323-0787 www.willowbrookil.org

Gewalt Hamilton Assoclates, Inc. (GHA) has reviewed the materials submitted on January &,
2020 for the above captioned project pertaining to traffic, parking and on-site circulation.
Concluslone of this effort and recommendations are presentad below:

18.

17.

18.

19.

21.

23.

24.

valusti
The Traffic Impact Evaluation (TIE) prepared by KLOA follows guidelines established by
the Instifute of Transportation Engineers (ITE). We generally concur with the KLOA
description of existing conditions.

Kingery Highway (IL Route 83} is under the juriediction of the lllinols Department of
Trangportation {IDOT) and Plainfield Road (County #31) is under the jurisdiction of the
DuPage County Division of Transportation (DuDOT). Please provide copies of all
correspendence with IDOT and/or DUDOT, as applicable.

The study appropriately includes weekday moming (7-9 AM), weekday evening (4-8 PM)
and Saturday midday (12 — 2PM) peak hour traific counts at key intersections within the
study area,

The KLOA study included a year 2040 design horizon using volumes summarized in the
Intersection Design Study (IDS) prepared for the Kingery Highway and Plainfield Road
improvements, which were under construction at the time of the study. Thess
improvements were also considered in the future analyses, as well as a 10 percent
increase in existing site traffic volumes were included o account for the reduction
associated with the construction activities.

. Trip generation estimates for the proposed car wash addition ware appropriately

calculated based on published rates contained in the current edition, 10th Edition, of the
ITE Trip Generation Handbook, using Land Use Code 948, Automated Car Wash. Nofe:
ITE does not have lrip rates for an awtomatic car wash in the weekday moming peak hour.
Please provide backup documentation on how the trips were generated during this
timsframe.

Studies have shown that for car wash / services developments, a substantial portion of the
site-generated vehicle trips are already present in the adjacent passing stream of treffic,
as well es intemal trips occur between the land uses within multi-use developments. The
KLOA study did not reduce the trip generation estimates for either pass-by or intemal
capture trips. The study also did not discount for the existing car wash trips. This suggests
that KLOA has analyzed the maximum site impacts at the shuiy area intersections.

. The directional distribution of new development site traffic appears appropriate based on

current travel pattems, the operational characierisfics of the street system and site
access.

The capacity analyses summaries provided in the study indicate that the site eccess
driveways currently operate at acceptable levels of service and will continue to do so with
the proposed car wash expansion traffic. The increase in site traffic will have minimal
impact on adjacent roadway operations. GHA concurs with these findings.

Access 1o the site Is currently provided via three driveways: one right-infright-out (RIRO)
on Kingery Highway and two full access driveways on Plainfield Road. With the
intersection improvements at Kingery Highway and Plainfielkd Road, the two Plainfield
Road access driveways will ba restricted to RIRQ via the provision of a barfier medlan.
The KLOA study recommended in connection with the proposed development the eastem
access be restricted to entry only and the western access to agress oniy via modifications
to the madian island on site, along with appropriate signage. However, due to the
Plainfield Road eastern avcess proximily to Kingery Highway, the estimated number of U-
tums (traffic enfering the site from Plainfield Road eastbound), the ability lo serve

-3



835 Midway Drive

R J()“’ Willowbrook, IL. 60527-5548
WBRO Phone: (830) 323-8215 Fax: (630) 323-0787 www.willowbrookil.org
EST. 1960
deliveries / fuel-tanker trucks, as well as to minimize confiicts on the adjacent readway
Mayor network and the pedestrian environment (crossing of driveways), it is recommended thet
the Plainfield Road eastern access be closed and the westem access serve entry/exit fo
Frank A. Trilla the site.
25, GHA eoncurs with the study recommendation to provide a stop bar, stop sign and right-
turn only sign for outbound movements at the site’s Kingery Highway access.
Vitlage Cleri

Traffic Gomments on Site Plan
Leroy R. Hangen 28. Truck tumn exhibits should be provided that show tha full tuming maneuvers for

deliveryftrash/emergency vehicles accessing the site to verify adequate circulation is
provided with the proposed site and recommended access modifications.

Village Trustees 27. The sile is currently served by seven parking spaces. With the proposed car wash
addition, the number of spaces will be reduced to two, including one accessible space. Six
Sue Berglund vacuum positions will also be provided, along with a space at each fueling pasition, The
site plan provided in the KLOA study depicts a maximum stacking of 6 vehicles at the car
Umberto Davi wash, without impacting site access or dirculation. Nofe: The Traffic Control Plan shows a
- vehicle queue of 10 at the car wash, however, access toffrom Plainflold Road is hlocked
Terrence Kelly r undoer this scenaro.
Michael Mistele For the car wash use, Village Code requires one parking space per each 1.5 employees,
as well as standing spaces (stacking) to accommodate a vehicle queue of 10 times the
Gayle Nea! maximum capacity of the car wash (maximum number of vehicles in the tunnel at one

time). Note: Ordinance No. 94-0-29, Section Twelve, granted a reduction in the stacking
spaces from twenly lo len spaces for the current car wash use on the sife. For the

Paut Oggerino gasoline station compaonent, Code reguires one space per each vehicle fueling position,
as welf as one space per each 200 square-feat of flocr area within the conveniencs siore.
Viliage Accordingly, it does not appear that the site will provide elther adequate parking or
Administrator stacking to accommodate the site uses to satisfy Village Cods. Supporting documentation
should be provided in order to verify appropnate parking and stacking will be provided,
Brian Pabst Le., ITE Parking Generation, 5th Edition parking demand calculations, local data collected
at existing facifities, and/or perform a queuing anslysis based on the projected traffic and
operational characteristics (time to pay, time to load on conveyor, time in tunnel, stc.). A
Chief of Police revised stacking exhibit should be provided that illusirates the anticipated demand, without
blocking access to/from the sits. Additional supporling operafional characteristics
Robert Schaller (meximum number of employees present al one ime, use of vacuum stafions / are they
freo with wash, elc.) should also be provided.
28. The Site Plan shouid include the recommended Plainfield Road access modifications (see
Director of comment 24 above).
Finance .
c
Carrie Dittman 29. The Traffic Control Plan should include the recommended right-turn only signage &t the

site egress to both Kingery Highway and Plainfield Road, per the KLOA study.
30. The plan should include *Da Not Enter® signage at the terminus of the car wash tunne! exit

. lane
BETIE S Lg, .
ety Y 31. This plan should also include the Plainfield Road access modifications (closure of the
} QLT eastern access), with appropriate signage.
L=1=0-

Prowud Member of the .
llincis Route 86 Scank: Byway




P F 835 Midway Drive
117'(- Y Willowbrook, IL 60527-5549
{ E““ —~._.2-‘-'—ﬁoo
wB Phone: (630) 323-8215 Fax: (630) 323-0787 www.willowbrookil.org
EST. 1960
Parking & Loading
Mavor 32. The site plan only provides two (2) parking spaces and the project requires elghteen (18)
parking spaces. Provide studies and justification to indicate that the proposed parking
Frank A. Trilla spaces will be sufficient to sarve the setvice station, car wash and convenience mart.
Landscape Plan
Village Cierk 33, Revise the landscape plans to include the comect property boundary and a graphic scale.
The landscape plans should be scaled to the same scale as the site plans (1" = 20").
Leroy R. Hansen 34. Revise the landscape plans to comply with Section 8-8-1(D). The legend should be
revised to indicate the number of evergreen, shrubs, deciduous shrubs, omamental traes,
conifer trees and shade trees and how many points are agsigned to each planting. (A
Village Tru sample of landscape plan is enclosed.)
35. lllustrate all berms and berm heights to comply with Secticn 9-6B-3(E)5 and Ordinance
Sue Bemlund No. 94-0"29. Section Ten.
36. Revisa the landscape plans for the location and construction of landscaping that does not
Umberto Davi interfere or conflict with the use of any utility easement or utility installations existing or
that is not planned to be installed in these sasement areas per Section 8-10-5(G)2.
Terrence Kelly 37. The landscape schedule should be revised to show the height of plantings at ime of
planting. The landscape plans shall comply with Section 8-12-4(D)I.
Michasl Mistele 38. Section 8-10-5(G)3 of the Village Code requires that end parking [slands shall be a
minimum of nine-foot (9') in width and that sach island shall be effectively fandscaped with
Gayle Neal appropriately sized plantings at a minimum ratio of one shade tree and nine (8) dwarf
variety shrubs per Island, Husfrate compliance with the required number of shade trees
Paul Oggering and dwarf shrubs. .
39. Include the percentages of landscaped areas per Section 9-10-5(G)3. The landscape
pians should be revised to show landscaping in the end parking islands.
40. Revise landscape plans to indicate the quantity, epecific type and category (deciduous,
Village evergreen, shrubs, eic), and size (helght) of all plant material per Section 9-10-5(G)4.
Administrator (See enclosed copy of sample landscape pian.)
41. Section 8-14-2(D)2 provides for Standards for Required Landscaping: All landscaping
Brian Pabst plans required hersunder shall be subject to the following standards:
42, Section 8-14-2(D)2(a) requires that all areas of the development not proposed to be
improved with structures, paved areas, watks, retsntion or detention areas, lighting or
Chief of Police other approved landscaping shall be improved with Kentucky blue grass sod or seed.
Bemonstrate compliance with Section 9-14-2(D)2(b} by including the landscape area
Robert Schaller calculations on the Landscape Plan,
43. Section 8-14-2(D)2(b) requires one approved planting for each seven hundred twenty-five
(725) square feet of gross lot area. For each required planting there shall be provided an
Director of addttional ten (10) square feet of approved ground cover adjacent thereto.
Flnance 49,002 sq.ft. / 725 sq.fl. = 69 plantings
44. Section 9-14-2(D)2(c)(2) requires that conifer trees shail comprise & minimum of ten
Carrie Dittman percent {10%) of the required landscape plantings and shall not be less than five fest (57
in height. Eandscape plan should be revised to show compliance.
5% of 89 = 3,45 = 3 shadoe trees
45, Section 9-14-2(D)2(c)(3) reqires thal omamental frees shall be provided and shall not be
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less than one and one-half inches (1172") in caliper measured one foot (1') from tha
ground nor iess than six feet (") In height, Omamental trees shall comprise a minimum of
twenty percent {20%) of the required landscapa plantings. Landscape plan should be
revised to show compliance.
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20% of 69 = 13.8 =14 omamental trees

Mayor 46. Section 8-14-2(D)2(c)(4) requires that a landscaped area having a minimum width of
saven feet (7") shall be provided around all bulldings excapt for bullding entrances and the
Frank A. Trilla front of retall business facilities to permit appropriate foundation plantings. Borger

plantings and foundation plantings shak be provided and shall comprise the remainder of
the required landscape plantings, of which a minimum of one-haif (1/2) shall be deciduous

Viilage Clerk shrubs at a minimum height of three feet (3 and the remaining one-half {1/2) shall be
evergreen shrubs at a minimum height of two feet (2'). The 7’ wide landscaped area and
Leroy R. Hansen required border and foundation plantings are only shown on portions of the perimeter of

the buliding. A varlation is required to reduce the minimum foundation landacape
area from seven feet (7') to zero feet at the south bullding fagade.

Village Trustee:
Signage
Sue Berglund 47, All signage must comply with the Sign Ordinance (Chapter 11 of the Municipal Cods).

48. No fences have been proposed.
Temence Kelly

Comment Respopse Lefter
Michael Mistole 49. Please submit a comment respense letter responding to each ftem in this letter,
Gayle Neal As a reminder, your petition is scheduled to appear before the Plan Commission on Wednesday,
February 5, 2020 at 7:00 pm at the Willowbrook Police Department, Training Room, 7780 Quincy
Paul Oggerino Street, Willowbrook, lllincis. A formal recommendation will likely be made at this meeting.
If you have any questions, you may contact me at planner@willowbrook.il.us or (830) 820-2233.
Village
Administrator
Sincerely,
Brian Pabst MQ
a
Chiesf of Polics
Ann Choi
Robert Schaller Village Planner
. Cc: Michael S. Mertens
D'mr Df Dﬂn Lynch
Finance
Carrie Dittman

& WETRLS g,

“._ﬂ' Y B
e : :
F

piemmt s,




Staff Report to the Plan Commission
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Village of Willowbrook
Staff Report to the Plan Commission
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Plan Commission Date:

Prepared By:
Case Title:

Applicant:
Action Requested:

Applicable Regulations:

Location:

PINs:

Existing Zoning;
Proposed Zoning:
Existing Land Use:
Property Size:

Surrounding Land Use;

Documents Attached:

February 5, 2020

Ann Choi, Village Planning Consultant

CONCEPT REVIEW: “735 Plainfield Road PUD" — Planned Unit
Development for a hotel, financial institution and restaurant with drive-
through.

GW Property Group, LLC (and Louis Viren as property owner)
Conceptual review and feedback on a planned unit development
approval of an approximately 14,330 square foot hotel (Home2Suites), a
6,800 square foot financial institution (Chase Bank), and a 2,400 square
foot restaurant with a drive-through (Starbucks), and consideration of
other such relief, exceptions, and variations from Title 8 and Title 10 of
the Village Code.

Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations

735 Plainfield Road, Willowbrook IL 60521

09-23-406-003

B-2 Community Shopping

B-2 Community Shopping with a Special Use for a PUD

Willowbrook Bowl (not currently operational)

2.79 Acres

Use Zoning
North Limited Office Professional LOP
South Community Shopping B-2
East Office Research OR
West Community Shopping B-2
Attachment 1:  Site Plan
Attachment 2: Building Elevations
Attachment 3: Traffic Impact and Parking Study

Suggested Scope of Work

Necessary Action by Plan Commission: q_o vote is Mui%. The Plan Commission 1s asked to review
and provide preliminary feedback to the applicant on the possible special use planned unit development
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Staff Report to the Plan Commission February 5, 2020
20-02 735 Plainfield Read PUD Ann Choi, Planning Consultant

Development Proposal

Location & Zoning Request

The subject property is located on the south side of Plainfield Road, between lllinois Route 83 to the west and
Adams Street to the east. The site contains about 2.79 acres and is currently improved with one building,
formerly occupied by the Willowbrook Bowling Alley. Adjacent developments include Pete’s Fresh
Market/Willows Shopping Center to the northwest, the existing Chase Bank to the north, Willowbrook
Kindercare to the northeast, TCF Bank to the east, and the Willowbrook Town Center to the west and south.
The existing bowling alley building on the subject property has non-conforming setbacks as it is situated at the
far southeast end of the lot, not far from the south and east property lines.

Existing access to the subject property includes one driveway on Plainfield Road and one cross-access driveway
along the western property line that connects to the Willowbrook Town Center. Nearly all of the balance of
the lot is paved with a parking lot. Immediately east of subject property line is TCF Bank and currently, there is
no direct access from the subject property to TCF Bank or to Adams Street, which has a higher elevation than
the subject property.

GW Properties, LLC, (the “Applicant”) proposes to demolish the existing building on-site and is requesting
feedback on the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) with hotel, restaurant with drive-through,.and a
bank. It in anticipated that following the concept review, a formal application will be submitted for a request
to approve a special use permit for the PUD including certain relief, exceptions and variations from Title 9 and
Title 10 of the Village Code; a Preliminary and Final Plat of Subdivision; and a Preliminary and Final Plat of PUD.
The Applicant intends to redevelop the property into a three-tenant mixed use development that will include
a four-story hotel {(Home2 Suites by Hilton) on southern portion of the property, a 6,800 square foot financial
institution (Chase Bank) on the northwest portion of the property, and a restaurant with drive-through
{Starbucks) on the northeast portion of the property.

Exhibit 1: Location Map

A

SUBJECT d

SPROPERTY,

-
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Staff Report to the Plan Commission February 5, 2020 .-
20-02 735 Plainfield Road PUD Ann Choi, Planning Consultant 1 S
Summary of Requests:

1. Special Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development with a hotel, restaurant with drive-through, and
bank including certain relief, exceptions and waivers from Title 9 and Title 10 of the Village Code.
2. Resubdivision of the subject property into three lots.

Exhibit 2: Street View of Subject Property

Exhibit 3: Zoning Map (B-2 Community Shopping)
=

v | ann |
i

L SF PUE

History/Background

The subject property was developed in 1963 by Louis Viren’s Father, Lou Senior, as a bowling alley and
restaurant. In 1973, ten years later, eight {8) additional bowling lanes were added towards the west. The
property owner, Lou Viren, took over the ownership and operational management in 2003 and has run the
business since. The petitioner, GW Properties, has been working with the property owner and the Village on
potential redevelopment concepts for the property. The Plan Commission last saw concepts for the subject
property in September 2018 for the reuse and repurposing of the existing bowling alley building {(now vacant)
for an entertainment venue consisting of boutique bowling, laser tag, video arcade and a restaurant bar. The
previous concept also included a Chase Bank as an outlot.

Page 3 of 23
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20-02 735 Plainfield Road PUD Ann Choi, Planning Consultant

Business Narrative

Hotel

Home?2 Suites, a four-story, approximately 14,330-square-foot, 90-room hotel, is an affordable, all-suite hotel
that features contemporary accommodations. Home2 Suites targets both business and leisure travelers and
opened its first location in 2011. As of today, they have 290 locations throughout the United States, Canada
and Mexico.

GW Property Group, LLC will be selling the 1,35-acre western portion of the property {Lot 1} to Prominence
Hospitality Group who will be developing the property and managing the hotel. Prominence Hospitality Group

is the owner and operator of over twenty hotels throughout the Midwest, under the flags of Hilton, Marriott,

Hyatt, Choice Hotels, Carlson Rezidor Hotel Group and InterCentinental Hotels Group.

Restaurant with Drive-through
On the northeast corner of the subject property, GW Property Group will be developing a one-story,

approximately 2,400 square-foot, free-standing restaurant with one drive-through lane on the 0.65-acre
northeast lot {Lot 2). The restaurant’s hours of operation will be Monday — Thursday 5:30am — 9:30pm; Friday
5:30am ~ 11pm; Saturday 6am-10pm; Sunday 6am-9:30pm.

Financial Institution

Chase Bank wishes to purchase a subdivided 0.71-acre parcel (Lot 3). Chase Bank will be relocating from across
the street into a brand new 6,800 square-foot property with two drive-through lanes. Chase Bank will be
purchasing their portion of the property from GW Property Group, LLC and self-developing their new branch.
Chase Bank’s hours of operation will be Monday — Saturday 9am-6pm and will be ciosed on Sundays.

Staff Analysis

Appropriateness of Use

The subject property is zoned 8-2 Community Shopping and is within the Route 83/Plainfield Road Business
District. The financial institution is a permitted use and the restaurant with drive-through use is permitted as a
special use in the B-2 Community Shopping District. The hotel use is a permitted use in the B-4 Highway And
Service Business District, but may be accommodated as part of the Planned Unit Development process, utilizing
a waiver from Section 9-13-6(K). Section 9-13-6(K} allows any permitted or special use available under any of
the various zoning districts classifications, as either a permitted or special use within a PUD consisting of more
than five (5) acres, and specifically approved by the Village Board, after a finding that such use is consistent
with the PUD objectives. Since the proposed development is under five acres, the applicant will need to request
a variation from this section to allow the hotel use,

Although the B-2 Community Shopping District is typically geared more towards retail uses and the proposed
uses will not generate retail sales tax revenue for the Vvillage, the Village will benefit from a recently amended
hotel tax and the proposed restaurant with drive-through would generate a places of eating tax. The proposed
uses will also occupy a key vacancy along Plainfield Road and are appropriately scaled to fit comfortably into
the community and commercial/office surroundings. A bank is a compatible and complementary use next to
the hotel and restaurant with drive-through. In addition, it will bring additional foot traffic and consumers to
the adjacent shopping center and surrounding area.

The proposed development presents some challenges as the site will need to accommeodate three high-
intensity uses on less than three acres. Further studies will be required to evaluate impacts on circulation and
site access. However, Staff believes the combination of uses are appropriate for the area and will benefit the
community cverall.

Page 4 of 23
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Staff Report to the Plan Commission February 5, 2020
20-02 735 Plainfield Road PUD Ann Choi, Planning Consultant

Bulk Regulations & PUD Standards

The property is zoned B-2 Community Shopping. A detailed discussion of important bulk exceptions and
variations is provided below and summarized in the following tables. Items in orange require certain relief,
exceptions or waivers from the code. items in blue indicate where the proposed site plan was deficient, and
Staff requests more information to assess.

Setbacks:
Staff notes that numerous non-conformities will result as part of the subdivision into three lots. Refer to Table
1 for a review of the B-2 bulk regulations.

Table 1: B-2 Zoning District Bulk Regulations

!fl e A, Tt SRR 0 15 e e e -_ __'-:_'a't.\" '-._;_.- —
Y Code . lotl ] 7Lc-lrtr 3 -ﬁ‘i.;atr_sr =
_Item pdchanin Requirement SoglelCot Proposed Proposed Proposed
Min. Lot Area (acres} | 9-6B-3(A) 1 2.79 1.35 085 s ar
9-6B-3{C)1 200" RICIEHhaniN| | /p Slasseas | |,
. . 200 e
Min. Lot Width
9-6B-3(C)3 150° More than More than N/A More than
150° 150 150°
. ) More than More than More than Need more
Min. Lot Depth 9-68-3(D) 200 200" 200 200" info
Min. Front Yard
Setback 9-6B-3(E)L 6’ vl PP RoTE AN [ ore Sep
{Plainfield Road) :
o ow . | Maorethan N )
. - 482N o More than
ool PESC PR - gl b S bt s
- 4 E t - ¥ . - &
Ao | outy | Feeg
Min. Exterior Side
Yard Setback 9-6B-3{E)3 60’ No exterior side yards (landlocked)
{Plainfield Road})
Min. Rear Yard i
Setback 318 % ) s oo More than S TR
(88.40 and 13205 | TEB3EM & {south) R 40 i el
lot lines) ey
Max. Lot Coverage 9-6B-3(F) 50% 19.9% 24.3% 8.5% 21.9%
Max. Height 9-6B-3(G) 30 - Less than 30° | less than 30’
Max. Floor Area Ratio | 9-6B-3(H) 0.30 0.20 0.24 0.08 0.22

Parking, Access & Circulation

Access & Circulation

The subject property is currently served by an existing eastbound right-in, right-out only access along Plainfield
Road. The proposed development proposes to change this to a right-in and left-out/right-out access. The
subject property has an existing cross access agreement in place with the Willowbrook Town Center along the
western portion of the lot. The proposed development will further require an additional cross access
agreement since interior vehicular circulation is dependent upon shared access between all three lots. The
proposed development also proposes an access drive between Lot 2 and the lot to the east of the property.
The topography needs further study to see if this cross access is feasible. Staff notes that Lot 1 will be
landlocked due to the subdivision of the three lots, and will not have frontage along a public street. Lot 1 will
only be accessible via the existing drive aisle that is part of the Willowbrook Town Center. A waiver from the
subdivision regulations that require lots to front on a public street will be required.
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Proposed Parking & Loading
As a single unified lot, the proposed development provides sufficient parking. However, after the lot has been

subdivided into three lots, Lot 1 will be deficient by 19 parking spaces and will require a variation for reduced
parking. As an alternative, a shared parking agreement will likely be necessary to resolve the parking issues
between the three lots.

The proposed development also does not indicate any areas for loading. Refer to Table 2 and Table 3 for the
Parking & Loading Tables.

- i Table 2; Off- I
= Code Sectionor | Code o | betd Lot 2 Lot3
Ordinance Requirement Proposed Proposed Proposed
Location 9-10-4(A) See code Need more info
12’ x 55’
Size 9-10-4(B) 14’ vert. Need more info
clearance
Access, Servicing,
Repair and Service, 9-10-4(C-G) See code Need more info
Use, Computation
Single—1
: 1-lotl
Required Berths 9-10-4{H) 0— Lot 2 0 1] 0 1]
1-lot3

The proposed development does not indicate any loading berths on the site plan. Staff recommends that the
site plan be revised to include loading berths that serve the highest intensity uses, the restaurant with drive-
through and the hotel.

Table 3 on the following page indicates that numerous waivers for parking area setbacks will be required for
each lot.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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February 5, 2020

Ann Choi, Planning Consultant

_ Table 3: Off-§treet Parking
(= - w A "..::‘::"gzl .! — e X = _.L_:
o h Code Section or Code Single Lot Lot1 lot2 Lot3
Ordinance | Requirement Prpposgd Propased Proposed
jmtaide o s Int.side
10 from . N ; iy
info (east} .
nearest lot e ide .7 Q‘-hf'iwuﬂ
line in 1 Bank drive-  |'Dfect{west Rty |
' int.side and ‘through is §t) sn L 0
rear yards ‘partialty in
| hotel lot
Parking Area SE10:5(6) and
Setbacks: .
15 fram Bank drive-
nearest lot
line in front .thro.ugh i.s
and ext. side | Peiohi. b
hotel lot
yards 1 tnorth)
5-10-5(6) RO Liss thas 25"
property line S
Screening and
Landscaping 9-10-5(G)1-{G)4 See code Need more info
Standards
Lighting 9-10-5(1)4 See code Need more info
Hotel 54
Rest. 24
. 9-10-5(K) e 1/3{.)0 Bank 23 ] 24 required 23 required
Required Spaces Hotel varies i | 35 provided | 37 provided
Rest. 1/100 Total -]
141 req’d.
147 prov.
Minimum Parking
Space And Aisle 9-10-5(Lj1 9'x 18’ Need more info
Dimensions
Not lass than
Undivided 2:way 9-10-5{L)2ta)2(b) 2 widsior Need more info
driveway more than
38' wide.
Radius Connecting
:zr;:;::";;'\';’xay 9-10-5(L)2(b)2(a) | See code Need more info
Edge
Driveway Location on
Lots for all Uses other | 9-10-5(L)2{d) 70 Less than 70¢
than SFR
Spacing betw.
Separate Driveway 9-10-5{L)2(e) Min. 400° Need more info
Entrances
Spaces For The f;r;gle——ss
Physically 9-10-5{N}1 5 i 1 2
Handicapped ey
lot3-2
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20-02 735 Plainfield Road PUD Ann Choi, Planning Consultant

Trash Enclosure & Signage

To comply with the current zoning ordinance, the applicant is reguired to install a trash enclosure for the
dumpster on the property, per Section 9-12-11(A)1 of the Village's code. The proposed plan indicates there will
be two trash enclosures on Lots 1 and 2. The refuse storage areas shall be screened on a minimum of three (3)
sides by a solid masonry wall or equivalent material to a height of not less than &' and no greater than 7' in
height. Signage details have not yet been provided by the applicant but the proposed site plan indicates there
will be two monument signs, one on Lot 2 and one on Lot 3. Section 9-11-12(B)1(d) permits a total of one
freestanding ground sign for businesses in the B-2 District having a gross floor area of less than thirty-five
thousand (35,000} square feet. A variation may be required to permit the second monument sign as part of
the PUD.

Tri-State Fire Protection District Preliminary Comments
The Fire Protection District offered the following concerns:
1. The turning radius of the drive with curbs and access.
2. Width of the drive. A minimum 20-foot clear drive access is required.
3. Hydrant locations: additional hydrants will be required.
4. Entry into the property.

Staff recommends that the applicant meet with the Tri-State Fire Protection District prior to the formal
application submittal to address these concerns.

Engineering Preliminary Comments

1. We would suggest that the driveway onto Plainfield Road be “right in — right out” considering its
proximity to the signalized intersection to the Town Center/Pete’s Fresh Market. The driveway is
within the taper to the left turn lane of that intersection. DuPage Co. DOT has jurisdiction of Plainfield
Road and will make the final determination.

2. We presume there will be cross access agreements in place between all lots.

3. Future cross access is shown to the TCF bank property to the east, which we agree with. It is not likely
possible to complete without redevelopment of the neighboring property.

4. Although no engineering information is shown, there is a watermain along the west property line and
within the Plainfield Road south right of way. Storm sewer is within the Plainfield Road right of way
as well. The applicant will have to coordinate with DuPage Co. Public Works for sanitary sewer
connections.

5. Additional comments can be provided as more detail is provided.

Traffic & Circulation Comments

A traffic impact and parking analysis will be required. The Village Traffic Engineer (Gewalt Hamilton Associates,
Inc.) suggests a scope of work for the traffic study for the 735 Plainfield Road redevelopment, a copy of which
is enclosed. The main areas of concern that should be addressed within the study are:

1. Impact of the Plainfield Rd / Willowbrook Town Center intersection signal operations {queues) on site
access. Are there any modifications / restrictions to access from either road or additional stacking
needed on the access throat to accommodate traffic to/from the site?

2. Appropriate wayfinding signing, along with supplemental pavement markings are needed to direct
traffic to the mix of uses on site, including the bank drive-up lane and the coffee-shop drive-thru.

3. Show pedestrian paths / crosswalks internal to the site and connecting to the adjacent shopping
center.

4, Lack of bypass lane for the coffee shop drive-thru use.
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Certain Relief/Waivers Requested

in order to maintain compliance with the Village Zoning Code, the proposed development will require certain
relief, exceptions, and waivers as outlined befow. Note: The proposed development may require more or less
than what is listed in this staff report for the concept plan review, as this list is not meant to be all-inclusive.
Staff recommends that future plans incorporate the recommendations by Village staff and minimize the
nurber of waivers and variations, as feasibie.

Zoning Ordinance
Pursuant to Section 9-13-6 of the Village Code, the following waivers from the provisions of the Zoning
Ordinance include but are not limited to:

Lot 1 {Hotel

1. That Section 9-6B-3(G) Bulk Regulations, Maximum Height, be varied to permit an increase in the maximum
building height to exceed thirty (30°) for Lot 1.

2. That Section 9-10-4(H) Off-Street Loading, Required Berths, be varied to permit the reduction of the
minimum number of required loading berths from one {1} loading berth to zero (0) loading berths for Lot
Staff recommends that one loading berth be provided for Lot 1.

3. That Section 9-10-5(G} Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required front yard pavement setback {along the west lot line) to less than fifteen feet (15) for Lot 1.

4. That Section 9-10-5(G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required interior side yard parking area setbacks {along the north and south lot lines) to less than ten feet
{10’} for Lot 1.

Staff recommends that all portions of the drive-through for the bank ATM be completely located within Lot

3, and no portion is to be located within the other lots.
5. That Section 9-10-5(G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum

required rear side yard parking area setback {along the east lot line) to less than ten feet (10') for Lot 1.

6. That Section 9-10-5(K) Off-Street Parking, Required Spaces, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
parking requirements from ninety-four {94) parking spaces to seventy-five (75) parking spaces for Lot 1.
A shared parking agreement may be required.

7. That Section 8-10-5(N}1 Off-Street Parking, Spaces For The Physically Handicapped, be varied to permit a
reduction in the minimum accessible parking requirements from three (3) parking spaces to two {2) parking
spaces for Lot 1.

Lot 2 {Restaurant with Drive-through)

8. That Section 9-3-7(A}4 Specific Setbacks, Plainfield Road, be varied to permit a reduction in the required
setback of one hundred feet {100’} for Lot 2.

9. That Section 2-6B-3{A) Bulk Regulations, Minimum Lot Area, be varied to permit a reduction in the
minimum lot area to less than one acre (1 ac) for Lot 2.

10. That Section 9-6B-3{C)1 Bulk Regulations, Minimum Lot Width, be varied to permit a reduction in the
minimum lot width to less than two hundred feet {20¢') for Lot 2.

11. That Section 9-6B-3(E)2 Bulk Regulations, Required Setbacks, be varied to permit a reduction in the
minimum interior side yard setback (along the east lot line) to less than thirty feet {30°) for Lot 2.

12, That Section 9-10-5(G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required front yard pavement setback {along Plainfield Road) to less than twenty-five feet {25) for Lot 2.

13. That Section 9-10-5{G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required interior side yard parking area setbacks (along the east and west ot lines) to less than ten feet
(10"} for Lot 2.

14. That Section 9-10-5(G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required rear side yard parking area setback {afong the south lot line) to iless than ten feet (10’) for Lot 2.

Page 9 of 23




Staff Report to the Plan Commission February 5, 2020
20-02 735 Plainfield Road PUD Ann Choi, Planning Consultant

15. That Section 9-10-5(N)1 Off-Street Parking, Spaces For The Physically Handicapped, be varied to permit a
reduction in the minimum accessible parking requirements from two (2) parking spaces to one (1) parking
spaces for Lot 2.

Lot 3 {(Bank)
16. That Section 9-3-7(A)4 Specific Setbacks, Plainfield Road, be varied to permit a reduction in the required

setback of one hundred feet (100') for Lot 3.

17. That Section 9-6B-3(A} Bulk Regulations, Minimum Lot Area, be varied to permit a reduction in the
minimum lot area to less than one acre {1 AC) for Lot 3.

18. That Section $-6B-3{E)2 Bulk Regulations, Required Setbacks, be varied to permit a reduction in the
minimum interior side yard setback (along the east lot line) to less than thirty feet (30°) for Lot 3.

19. That Section 9-6B-3(E)4 Bulk Regulations, Required Setbacks, be varied to permit a reduction in the
minimum rear yard setback (along the east lot line) to less than forty feet (40°) for Lot 3.

20. That Section 9-10-4(H) Off-Street Loading, Required Berths, be varied to permit the reduction of the
minimum number of required loading berths from one (1) loading berth to zero (0} loading berths for Lot
Staff recommends that one loading berth be provided for Lot 3.

21. That Section 9-10-5(G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required interior side yard parking area setbacks (along the east and west ot lines) to less than ten feet
(10’) for Lot 3.

22. That Section 9-10-5(G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required rear side yard parking area setback {along the south lot line) to less than ten feet (10°) for Lot 3.
Staff recommends that all portions of the drive-through for the bank ATM be completely located within Lot
3, and no portion is to be located within the other lots.

23. That Section 9-10-5(G) Off-Street Parking, In Yards, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum
required front yard pavement setback (along Plainfield Road) to less than twenty-five feet (25’) for Lot 3.

PUD Standards
Pursuant to Section 9-13-6 of the Village Code, the following variations from the provisions of the Planned Unit
Development Regulations include but are not limited to:

24. That Section 9-13-6(B} PUD Standards, Size and Ownership, be varied to waive the requirement that the
subject realty be under single ownership and/or unified control.

25. That Section 9-13-6(E)2 PUD Standards, Space Between Buildings, be varied to waive the requirement that
the minimum horizontal distance between buildings shall be equal to the height of the taller buildings in
the case of freestanding, unattached buildings other than one-, two- or two and one-half story buildings.

26. That Section 9-13-6(F) PUD Standards, Yards, be varied to waive the requirement that the required yards
or setbacks along the periphery of the planned unit development be at least equal in width or depth to
that of the applicable required yard within the adjacent zoning district.

27. That Section 9-13-6(K) PUD Standards, Uses For PUDs Greater Than Five Acres, be varied to waive the
requirement that any permitted or special use available under any of the various zoning districts
classifications, whether singly or in combination, and any other use permitted by law, may be aliowed as
either a permitted or special use within a planned unit development consisting of more than five (5) acres.

28. That Section 9-13-6(L} PUD Standards, Other Standards, be varied to waive the requirement that the
planned unit development must comply with the minimum standards set forth in subsections {A), (B), (C),
(D), (H), (1) and {K) of this section.

Subdivision Ordinance

Pursuant to Section 10-8-7 of the Village Code, the following variation from the provisions of the Subdivision
Regulations include but are not limited to:
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Lot 1 {Hotel

29. That Section 10-4-3(B}, Lots, Arrangement, be varied to waive the requirement that Lot 1 front on a public
street.

Lot 2 (Restaurant) and Lot 3 (Bank}.

30. That Section 10-4-3{A), Lots, Sizes and Shapes, be varied to waive the requirement that lot areas and width
of Lot 2 and Lot 3 conform to at least the minimum requirements of the zoning ordinance for the district
in which the subdivision is proposed.

31. That Section 10-4-3(A)}, Lots, Sizes and Shapes, be varied to waive the requirement that building setback
lines within Lot 2 and Lot 3 conform to at least the minimum requirements of the zoning ordinance for the
district.

Development Process & Next Steps

1. Applicant should coordinate a development meeting with the various Village departments after the sketch
plan review to coordinate issues discussed at the Plan Commission meeting, and consider revisions to the
site plan. The number of variations and waivers requested should be minimized.

2. Applicant submits complete application packets for both the Planned Unit Development and Subdivision.

3. Staff and consultants review the submitted doecuments and send out comments to applicant.

4. Applicant resubmits revised documents.

5. Project goes to Plan Commission for a public hearing and then to Village Board. The public hearing, pending
a complete planning application, is tentatively anticipated for April 1, 2020.

Applicable Findings

Section 9-14-5(B) of the Willowbrook Zoning Ordinance establishes seven {7) standards for a Special Use Permit
that must be evaluated by the Plan Commission and Village Board. The applicant must meet all standards and
draft responses to these standards if they wish to proceed with a petition for special use approval.

Additionally, the Plan Commission and Village Board shall not recommend or grant variations from the
regulations of the Village's Zoning Ordinance unless affirmative findings of fact are made as to all of the
standards set forth in Section 9-14-4(E} of the Willowbrook Zoning Ordinance. The applicant is also applying
for a Planned Unit Development, and therefore the applicant must also draft responses to each of the
Standards for Planned Unit Developments.

Plan Commission Feedback

The applicant is requesting information feedback from the Plan Commission about the use and concept pfan.
They understand that it is informal, and that the Plan Commission’s future decistons could be impacted from
later testimony that may be provided at a public hearing should the applicant choose te move forward. The
intent is to determine if there are major roadblocks to the plan before they invest in a formal application. A
summary of the discussion is to be forwarded to the Village Board via the Plan Commission minutes. No farmal
action in support of or in oppositien to the proposed sketch plan will be taken at this stage.
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Attachment 1
Site Plan (1 page)
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Attachment 2
Building Elevations {8 pages)
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Attachment 3
Traffic Impact and Parking Study
Suggested Scope of Work (1 page)
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Traffic Impact and Parking Study

1\ GEWALT HAMILTON

L9 B V= AsSOCIATES, INC.

sllestedsCopeofwork CONSULTING ENGINEERS
Mixed-Use Development 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL 60061
735 Plainfield Road TEL 847.478.9700 * Fax 847.478.9701
Willowbrook, lllinois www.gha-engineers.com

The study should be performed in accordance with Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) and DuPage County
Division of Transportation (DuDOT) guidelines and should include the following tasks:

1.

Conduct weekday morning (6-9 AM), weekday evening (3-6 PM) and Saturday midday (10AM — 2PM) traffic
counts at the following intersections:

Plainfield Road at Willowbrook Town Center

Willowbrook Town Center at Site Access

» Plainfield Road at Site Access

¢ Plainfield Road at Adams Street

Determine project characteristics, including trip generations, traffic distribution and traffic assignments. Trip
generation rates should be based on published rates contained in current edition of the ITE Trip Generation
Handbook, 10t Edition, and/or local data collected from similar uses.

Please include a “no-build” scenario based on Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning Year 2050 traffic
projections, as well as any planned developments and/or improvement projects within the study area
anticipated to occur within the project design horizon.

Analyze the traffic impacts using Synchro and/or Highway Capacity Manual software.

Recommend any intersection and/or access improvements, if necessary, to accommodate the project traffic
flows both on and off site.

Tabulate the parking requirements of the proposed development in accordance with the Viliage of
Willowbrook Zoning requirements.

Tabulate the parking requirements based on national “best practices,” using available ITE, Urban Land
Institute and/or local data collected from similar uses.

Perform a review of the site plan components, including the adequacy of vehicular and pedestrian
circulations and drive-thru stacking. Provide recommendations to improve operations, if necessary.

Prepare an AutoTurn analysis for fire and refuse trucks. Also include larger deliveries, as appropriate, to
serve the all uses of the development.

10. Prepare a traffic impact and parking summary report, including exhibits and tables, as necessary.



